MEETING OF THE AUDIT SUBCOMMITTEE
OF THE LEGISLATIVE COMMISSION
Legislative Building - Room 4100
Carson City, Nevada
Grant Sawyer State Office Building — Room 4401
Las Vegas, Nevada
Tuesday, December 2, 2014, 1:00 p.m.




MEETING NOTICE AND AGENDA

Name of Organization: Legislative Commission’s Audit Subcommittee
Date and Time of Meeting: December 2, 2014 - 1:00 p.m.
Place of Meeting: Legislative Building

401 S. Carson Street - Room 4100 - Carson City, Nevada

Note: Some members of the Committee may be attending the meeting and other persons may observe the meeting
and provide testimony, through a simultaneous videoconference conducted at the following location:

Grant Sawyer State Office Building,
555 East Washington Avenue - Room 4401 - Las Vegas, Nevada

If you cannot attend the meeting, you can listen to it live over the Internet. The address for the legislative website is
http://www.leg.state.nv.us. Click on the link “Calendar of Meetings — View”.

AGENDA

Note: Items on this agenda may be taken in a different order than listed. Two or more agenda items may be combined for
consideration. An item may be removed from this agenda or discussion relating to an item on this agenda may be
delayed at any time

1. Public Comment
(Because of time considerations, speakers are urged to avoid repetition of comments made by previous speakers)

For 2. Approval of minutes from October 6, 2014

Possible
Action

For 3. Presentation of audit reports (NRS 218G.240)

ibl . . .
P,gfsrtsilone — Paul Townsend, Legislative Auditor
a. Report on Count of Money in State Treasury
— Jelena Williams, Deputy Legislative Auditor; Shannon Ryan; Audit Supervisor

b. Department of Transportation, Information Security
— Jeff Rauh, Deputy Legislative Auditor; Doug Peterson, Information Systems Audit Supervisor

c. Department of Public Safety, Office of Director
— Yette Martell-Deluca, Deputy Legislative Auditor; Rocky Cooper, Audit Supervisor

d. Department of Education
— Dennis Klenczar, Deputy Legislative Auditor; Rick Neil, Audit Supervisor

e. Fiscal Costs of the Death Penalty, (A.B. 444)
— Daniel Crossman, Deputy Legislative Auditor; Shannon Ryan, Audit Supervisor

For 4. Presentation of six-month reports (NRS 218G.270)

Possible . . .
Action — Paul Townsend, Legislative Auditor

a. Department of Business and Industry, Nevada Transportation Authority
— Doug Peterson, Information Systems Audit Supervisor

b. Department of Administration, Nevada State Library and Archives — Mail Services
— Shannon Ryan, Audit Supervisor


http://www.leg.state.nv.us/

c. Department of Public Safety, State Fire Marshal Division
— Rocky Cooper, Audit Supervisor

d. Commission on Mineral Resources, Division of Minerals
— Rick Neil, Audit Supervisor

e. Department of Public Safety, Division of Emergency Management
— Rick Neil, Audit Supervisor

5. Public Comment
(Because of time considerations, speakers are urged to avoid repetition of comments made by previous speakers)

Note: We are pleased to make reasonable accommodations for members of the public who are disabled and wish to attend the
meeting. If special arrangements for the meeting are necessary, please notify the Audit Division of the Legislative Counsel Bureau,
in writing, at 401 S. Carson Street, Carson City, Nevada 89701-4747, or call Deborah Anderson at (775) 684-6815, as soon as possible.

Notice of this meeting was posted in the following Carson City, Nevada locations: Blasdel Building, 209 East Musser Street; Capitol

Press Corps; Capitol Building; City Hall, 201 North Carson Street; Legislative Building, 401 South Carson Street; and Nevada State
Library, 100 Stewart Street.

Notice of this meeting was faxed for posting to the following Las Vegas, Nevada, locations: Clark County Office, 500 South Grand
Central Parkway, and Grant Sawyer State Office Building, 555 E. Washington Avenue.

Notice of this meeting was posted on the Internet through the Nevada Legislature’s website at www.leq.state.nv.us

Supporting public material provided to Committee members for this meeting may be requested from the Audit Division of the

Legislative Counsel Bureau at (775) 684-6815 and is/will be available at the following locations: Meeting locations and the Nevada
Legislature’s website at www.leg.state.nv.us.



http://www.leg.state.nv.us/
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/

AUDIT SUBCOMMITTEE MINUTES
October 6, 2014



MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE
AUDIT SUBCOMMITTEE OF THE LEGISLATIVE COMMISSION
October 6, 2014

This is the third meeting of 2014.
This is the third meeting of the 2013 - 2014 Interim.

A meeting of the Audit Subcommittee of the Legislative Commission (NRS 218E.240)
was called to order by Assemblywoman Maggie Carlton, Chair, at 1:03 p.m., Monday,
October 6, 2014, in Room 4100 of the Legislative Building, Carson City, Nevada, with a
simultaneous video conference to Room 4412 of the Grant Sawyer State Office
Building, 555 East Washington Avenue, Las Vegas Nevada.

AUDIT SUBCOMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT:

Carson City:
Assemblywoman Maggie Carlton, Chair
Assemblyman Michael Sprinkle
Senator Ben Kieckhefer

Las Vegas:

Senator David Parks, Vice Chair
Senator Mo Denis

LEGISLATIVE COUNSEL BUREAU STAFF PRESENT:
Paul Townsend, Legislative Auditor
Deborah Anderson, Audit Secretary
Jane Bailey, Audit Supervisor
Tammy Goetze, Deputy Legislative Auditor
Mike Herenick, Deputy Legislative Auditor
Shawn Heusser, Deputy Legislative Auditor
Sandra McGuirk, Deputy Legislative Auditor
Rick Neil, Audit Supervisor
Todd Peterson, Deputy Legislative Auditor
Doug Peterson, Information Systems Audit Supervisor
Jeff Rauh, Deputy Legislative Auditor
Shannon Ryan, Audit Supervisor

The roll was taken. A quorum was present.
Item 1 — Public comment
Chair Carlton called for public comment. There was none.

Item 2 — Approval of minutes from the meeting of April 28, 2014
Chair Carlton called for a motion.



Legislative Commission’s Audit Subcommittee
October 6, 2014
Page 2 of 28

ASSEMBLYMAN SPRINKLE MOVED TO APPROVE THE AUDIT
SUBCOMMITTEE MINUTES OF APRIL 28, 2014. THE MOTION WAS
SECONDED BY SENATOR PARKS AND CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY.

Item 3 —Presentation of audit reports (NRS 218G.240)

Mr. Townsend stated our first audit today will be the Judicial Branch of Government,
Supreme Court of Nevada. Todd Peterson, Deputy Legislative Auditor and Rick Neil,
Audit Supervisor will be making the presentation.

a. Judicial Branch of Government, Supreme Court of Nevada

Todd Peterson, Deputy Legislative Auditor began his presentation with a brief overview
of the Supreme Court of Nevada. The Supreme Court is the State’s highest court and is
part of the Judicial Branch of government. The Supreme Court rules on appeals from
trial courts. Within the Supreme Court is the Administrative Office of the Courts, which
performs all administrative functions for the Court and provides support services to trial
courts.

Mr. Peterson stated the report provides staffing and budget information. Ex. 1
summarizes the Court’s revenues for fiscal years 2012 to 2014 and Ex. 2 shows the
Court’s expenditures by budget account for fiscal years 2012 to 2014.

The objective of the audit was to determine whether the Supreme Court has effective
controls over the procurement of goods and services, collection of peremptory
challenge and court filing fees, and safeguarding of equipment. The scope of the audit
focused on the 12-month period ending March 31, 2014.

Mr. Peterson stated auditors found the Supreme Court has adequate controls over the
procurement of goods and services. However, the Court can improve oversight of its
procurement activities. Auditors tested 10 purchases of goods (such as computer
equipment and office furniture) and 10 procurements of services. For 13 of 20
procurements tested, the Court did not solicit multiple bids or quotes, or document they
were requested.

Mr. Peterson stated 5 of 10 service procurements tested did not lend themselves to
competitive bidding because the services were for professional legal services,
specialized work or work on a proprietary computer system, and specific staff training.
For the remaining services, auditors found that the Supreme Court solicited quotes for
two services, but did not have documentation showing multiple quotes or bids were
requested for three services. These procurements are summarized in the report. The
lack of multiple bids or quotes does not mean the Court did not obtain goods and
services at a reasonable price. However, requesting and documenting the solicitation of
multiple quotes or bids would help management ensure it received the best product at
the best price. Supreme Court policies and procedures do not require staff to actively
seek multiple quotes or bids, or document they were requested.

The Supreme Court has developed procedures to help control its procurement activities,
and for the most part these procedures were followed. However, auditors observed



Legislative Commission’s Audit Subcommittee
October 6, 2014
Page 3 of 28

staff did not always follow some procedures. For example, contract summary sheets
were not always prepared for contracts and amendments, and packing slips were not
retained and initialed by staff verifying the receipt of goods purchased. Two
recommendations were made to improve controls over the procurement of goods and
services.

Mr. Peterson stated the Supreme Court has effective controls to ensure the timely
deposit of peremptory challenge and filing fees. Peremptory challenge fees are
received from district courts when a party to a case seeks a change in the judge hearing
the case. Filing fees are collected when a special proceeding is brought to the
Supreme Court. Based on 90 transactions tested, auditors found fees were deposited
timely. However, additional controls are needed to reduce the risk of loss of these fees.
During fiscal year 2014, the Court received over $565,000 in peremptory challenge and
filing fees.

The report notes the control weaknesses related to the collection of these fees. Checks
and money orders were not restrictively endorsed immediately upon receipt, peremptory
challenge fees were not recorded timely, and a proper reconciliation of peremptory
challenge and filing fees was not performed. Auditor testing did not identify missing
funds; however, improving controls over the collection of these fees will reduce the risk
they could become lost or stolen, and not be detected by the Court. Two
recommendations were made to improve controls over the collection of peremptory
challenge and filing fees.

Mr. Peterson stated the last audit finding is the Court needs to strengthen its controls
over equipment. The Court did not perform an annual inventory of equipment in its
custody. The last inventory of information technology (IT) equipment was performed
over 2 years ago and the Court does not have records of when the last non-IT inventory
was performed. Auditor testing did not find significant problems; however, the Court
has less assurance equipment is properly safeguarded, and that records are accurate
when physical inventories are not performed. For example, four items with a high
susceptibility to theft or loss were not recorded on the Court’s IT list. These items
included two computer storage hardware devices and two printers valued at over
$29,000.

Mr. Peterson stated the last part of the report shows proper disposal of IT equipment
could not be verified. Auditors reviewed documentation associated with the three most
recent disposals of the Court’s IT equipment. For two instances, the number of
computers, monitors, and printers documented on the Court’s disposal list did not agree
to the receipt provided by the entity to which the items were donated. For the third
instance, a receipt from the entity to which the items were donated could not be located.
Although the Court has procedures regarding equipment disposal, they do not address
the need to compare the receipt from the entity receiving excess equipment with the list
of equipment approved for disposal. Two recommendations were made to help ensure
the Court’s equipment is properly safeguarded.



Legislative Commission’s Audit Subcommittee
October 6, 2014
Page 4 of 28

Mr. Peterson concluded by stating the report also contains an organizational chart of the
Nevada Court System and the components of the Supreme Court, the audit
methodology, and the Supreme Court’s response to the audit report. In its response,
the Court rejected recommendation one (to revise policies and procedures to help
ensure competitive bids or quotes are solicited when procuring goods and services,
including documenting the rationale when a vendor is deemed sole source) and did not
agree with some findings. Therefore, in Appendix D, the auditors have included
comments to assure the readers of this report that our findings and recommendations
are appropriate. He opened for questions from the Committee.

Assemblyman Sprinkle stated the Court’'s response to recommendation one was the
Judicial Branch is not required under the Nevada Constitution or state law to conform to
the competitive bid process and asked if this was correct, and whether these are just
best practices recommended to them.

Mr. Peterson stated that is correct. Auditors found from review of statute there is no
requirement for the Court to solicit multiple quotes for bids as there is for Executive
Branch state agencies.

Assemblyman Sprinkle asked regarding the Courts’ response, if they understood the
recommendation, was the Court unwilling to conform, or just not happy with the first
recommendation.

Mr. Peterson stated he did not know how to characterize the Court’s response. The
relationship with the Office of the Courts and staff is good. Auditors discussed the
findings and recommendations with the Court. Auditors believed the Court agreed that
bids and quotes were appropriate depending on the value of the item being procured.

Chair Carlton stated it was nice to see the acceptance of the other recommendations
but the first recommendation rejection stands out. This was a recommendation simply
for best practices, and to reject it because the Court is not required to comply with
statute does not mean it is not a good recommendation. She too wanted to know the
reason and barriers for the rejection.

Robin Sweet, Director, Administrative Office of the Courts, stated the rejection was
because the Court does not have to follow the law. The Court does say in its response
that they will require competitive bids when estimated cost warrants. The Court’s
response notes that bids are obtained in many instances. It is just that the bids were not
documented. In many instances, the staff does obtain bids from multiple sources, but
only gives the Office the best bid.

Chair Carlton requested clarification on whether the Court was getting bids.

Ms. Sweet stated that she could not say that the Court is doing this 100% of the time.
For example, when a state purchasing contract is used other bids are not obtained.

Chair Carlton stated that she has concerns about this recommendation being rejected.
In this case we are not suggesting the law should change, we are just trying to set up
best practices to make sure things are transparent. The Court does receive a



Legislative Commission’s Audit Subcommittee
October 6, 2014
Page 5 of 28

significant amount of general funds and therefore, understanding where the general
fund dollars are being spent is important. Is it correct that you are probably going to
comply with this recommendation sometimes but not necessarily in every instance?

Ms. Sweet responded that was correct.

Chair Carlton stated her additional concern is that there is a ballot measure for an
appeals court. She asked whether there will be the same lack of transparency
regarding general fund dollars received for the appeals court.

Ms. Sweet responded the Court of Appeals, if passed by the voters, will use the same
administrative office and clerks’ office; thus, the procedures will likely be similar.

Chair Carlton stated she finds this to be troubling because they will be expecting
general fund dollars also. The best practices are out there on how funds are being
spent. Though we may not always agree on a process, if there are policies and
procedures there is consistency in the future.

Ms. Sweet replied that the Supreme Court does have financial policies and procedures
in place and we do get bids.

Assemblyman Sprinkle stated the response does say that the Court will require such
bids when the estimated price warrants such efforts. Do the policies and procedures
define when bids are warranted?

Ms. Sweet replied that the Court is reevaluating if an actual dollar amount should be set.
For example, if the estimated cost is $3,000, is it appropriate to go to a request for
proposal (RFP) that is going to take several people and several days to write and
process? This is ineffective use of Court resources. The Court will look at whether
Amazon, Home Depot or another has an item and are evaluating if there should be an
exact cost dollar amount to require an RFP. The best practice document the auditors
used for the recommendation was asked for; however, not received.

Assemblyman Sprinkle stated it is important the Court have documentation of best
practices when being asked to acknowledge and use them. He agrees that for some
purchases it may not be necessary to use a formal bid procedure. His concern lies in
the lack of transparency and the ultimate authority just resting in the Court without any
recommendations or best practices from the State or other outside body considered. A
set amount would be helpful when competitive bids need to be obtained.

Senator Denis referred to the comment made that the Court will look at the current
policy and make changes. He asked for clarification of who will be making this decision,
the process, and how exceptions will be determined.

Ms. Sweet stated that the Court’'s process is policies are first created by a subject
matter expert. For financial policy, she, as Director would have input. Other subject
matter experts such as IT or human resources may create policy, dependent on the
subject matter. The policy is drafted and then reviewed by the Court Policy Committee
made up of all representatives of the unit. The Committee reviews, makes
recommendations, and once approved it is then submitted to the Justices for final



Legislative Commission’s Audit Subcommittee
October 6, 2014
Page 6 of 28

approval. If the policies are not approved, they are sent back for further deliberations.
The Justices are involved with the final decision on the policy. Exceptions are
documented when requested. Documentation is then added to the file when complete.

Senator Denis asked how long this process is.

Ms. Sweet responded currently they are working on the inventory policy and that policy
is approximately three or four weeks into its process, and it is almost ready to go to the
Court. The financial policies are more detailed and are currently six months into that
process. The Court started the rewrites of the financial policies prior to the audit, almost
a year ago. Due to staff shortages, the process was stopped for a while. Later this year,
the Court will have those policies completed.

Senator Denis thanked Ms. Sweet for her response.
Chair Carlton opened for a motion to accept the report.

SENATOR KIECKHEFER MOVED TO ACCEPT THE REPORT ON THE
JUDICIAL BRANCH OF GOVERNMENT, SUPREME COURT OF
NEVADA. THE MOTION WAS SECONDED BY ASSEMBLYMAN
SPRINKLE AND CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY.

. Department of Health and Human Services, Use of Certain Assessments
Paid by Counties

Tammy Goetze, Deputy Legislative Auditor, began the presentation with background
information. She explained during the 2013 Legislative Session, concerns were
expressed regarding the Department of Health and Human Services’ use of certain
county assessments. As a result, Assembly Bill 255 was passed. Assembly Bill 255
requires the Legislative Auditor to audit the Department’s use of assessments paid by
counties pursuant to Nevada Revised Statutes 62B, 432B, and 439.

Ms. Goetze stated the Department of Health and Human Services collects several
county assessments. During the 2011 Legislative Session, the funding source for
several programs or services shifted from the state General Fund to county
assessments. These programs or services directly benefit the residents of the counties
impacted.

Assembly Bill 255 specified the following five assessments administered by the Division
of Public and Behavioral Health and the Division of Child and Family Services to be
audited: Community Health Services, Consumer Health Protection, Rural Child
Welfare, Youth Alternative Placement, and Youth Parole Bureau.

Ms. Goetze stated from July 1, 2011, to December 31, 2013, the Department collected
over $20.6 million in county assessments. Ex. 1 shows the breakdown of total revenues
collected by assessment and Ex. 2 shows each assessment and amount collected in
fiscal years 2012 to 2014.

Ms. Goetze stated all counties must pay each assessment unless excluded by statute
due to population thresholds. Counties may also request approval for an exemption to



Legislative Commission’s Audit Subcommittee
October 6, 2014
Page 7 of 28

carry out certain services that would otherwise be provided by the State. The report
shows each assessment and the exempt counties.

Ms. Goetze described the audit scope and objectives. The audit focused on
assessment revenues and related expenditures for the 30-month period ending
December 31, 2013. Audit objectives were to evaluate the Department’s calculation
and collection of assessments, and use of assessments paid by counties for: the
operation of regional facilities for the detention of children, activities of the Youth Parole
Bureau, child protective services in rural counties, and health services provided in the
counties.

Ms. Goetze discussed the report findings and recommendations. The auditors found
the Department of Health and Human Services’ use of certain assessments paid by
counties complied with state law; however, stronger controls are needed over the
calculation of assessments. After reviewing assessment calculations for fiscal years
2012 through 2014, auditors found assessment calculations were not supported by
adequate underlying records. Either the documents provided did not support the
amounts assessed or supporting documents could not be provided.

Ms. Goetze stated the Division of Public and Behavioral Health administers the
Community Health Services and Consumer Health Protection assessments.
Documentation supporting the calculation of these two assessments was not retained.

For the Community Health Services Assessment, the Division established contracts with
the counties in which community health nursing services are provided. Auditor testing
found documentation supporting the calculation of the base contract amounts was not
retained. In addition, documentation supporting the numbers used in the calculation of
certain cost estimates was also not retained and different methodologies were used in
calculating these estimates. Division management indicated the supporting
documentation for the contract amounts is no longer available, as the contracts have
been in existence for over 14 years, and significant employee turnover has occurred.

Ms. Goetze stated the Consumer Health Protection Assessment represents
environmental health program costs exceeding food establishment permit fee revenues.
Counties are assessed a percentage of this amount for annual food establishment
inspections provided by the Division in their counties. Auditor testing found
documentation supporting the number of food establishments used in the fiscal years
2012 to 2014 assessment calculations was not retained.

Ms. Goetze stated the Division of Child and Family Services administers the Rural Child
Welfare, Youth Alternative Placement, and Youth Parole Bureau assessments.
Documentation supporting the calculation of these three assessments was not retained
either.

The Rural Child Welfare Assessment is based on the rural child welfare program’s costs
for providing child protective services. The amount assessed to each county is based
on the county’s percentage of population under 18 years old. Auditor testing found



Legislative Commission’s Audit Subcommittee
October 6, 2014
Page 8 of 28

population data used in the fiscal years 2012 to 2014 assessment calculations were not
retained.

The Youth Alternative Placement Assessment is a budgeted amount used for the
operating costs of the youth detention facilities. The amount assessed to each county is
based on the county’s percentage of total student enroliment within the State.

The Youth Parole Bureau Assessment covers the costs for providing youth parole
services to delinquent youth. The amount assessed to each county is based on the
county’s percentage of students enrolled in grades 7 through 12 in public schools within
the State. Auditor testing found student enrollment data used in the fiscal years 2013
and 2014 youth assessment calculations were not retained. Division management
indicated employee turnover led to supporting documents no longer being available.

Ms. Goetze explained current policies and procedures do not provide adequate
guidance to assist staff with developing and providing adequate support for assessment
calculations. Without sufficient underlying records, assessment calculations cannot be
considered reliable. Policies and procedures are lacking. The Division of Public and
Behavioral Health has not developed written policies and procedures over its health
assessments. As a result, staff could not explain the differences auditors found in the
number of food establishments used in the calculation of the Consumer Health
Protection Assessment. Additionally, staff could not explain how the base contract
amounts were calculated for the Community Health Services Assessment.

When the assessments were established, the Division did not develop policies and
procedures describing the calculation of these health assessments. Procedures are
needed to help ensure assessments are calculated accurately and consistently over
time. Division management indicated it is in the process of developing policies and
procedures for these assessments.

Ms. Goetze stated the calculation of certain youth assessments did not comply with
state law. Incorrect student enrollment data was used in the calculation of the Youth
Alternative Placement and Youth Parole Bureau assessments. As a result, counties
were not assessed the proper amounts in fiscal years 2012 to 2014.

State law requires the total number of pupils in the State in the preceding school year
be used for the calculation of the Youth Alternative Placement Assessment. However,
auditors found the fiscal year 2012 assessment only included students enrolled in
grades 7 through 12, and the fiscal years 2013 and 2014 assessments did not use
student enrollment data from the preceding school year. Auditors recalculated the
correct assessment amounts and determined the largest differences for fiscal years
2012 through 2014 combined were Elko County being under assessed by $9,182, and
Washoe County being over assessed by $13,414. Ex. 4 shows the assessment
calculation differences per county for fiscal years 2012 to 2014.

In addition, state law requires the total number of pupils enrolled in grades 7 through 12
in public schools in the State in the preceding school year be used for the calculation of
the Youth Parole Bureau Assessment. However, auditors found the fiscal years 2012



Legislative Commission’s Audit Subcommittee
October 6, 2014
Page 9 of 28

through 2014 assessments incorrectly included private school students, and the fiscal
year 2014 assessment did not use student enrollment data from the preceding school
year. Auditors recalculated the correct assessment amounts and determined the
largest differences for fiscal years 2012 through 2014 combined were Clark County
being under assessed by $29,549 and Washoe County being over assessed by
$45,154. Ex. 5 shows the assessment calculation differences per county for fiscal years
2012 to 2014.

Ms. Goetze stated these errors occurred because staff did not follow written policies
and procedures for properly calculating the county youth assessments. After discussing
the differences with management, the Division indicated that the counties’ fiscal year
2015 assessments will be adjusted to reflect the errors noted in our audit. Four
recommendations were made for improving controls over assessment calculations.

Ms. Goetze stated auditor testing found the Department used county assessment
revenues as statutorily intended. Auditors tested 225 expenditures totaling over $3.7
million and found transactions were properly approved, mathematically accurate, and
properly recorded. Costs also related to the services being provided.

A description of the use of assessment revenues and our analysis of fiscal years 2012
and 2013 costs for each assessment are outlined in the report. For the Community
Health Services Assessment, assessment revenues are used to cover costs relating to
the operation of community health nursing facilities. Ex. 7 shows the assessment
amounts and costs for providing these services by county.

Ms. Goetze stated for the Consumer Health Protection Assessment, auditors indicated
that assessment revenues are used to cover the costs of conducting food establishment
inspections. Ex. 8 shows the assessment amounts and number of food establishments
by county.

For the Rural Child Welfare Assessment, auditors state that assessment revenues are
used to cover the costs for providing child protective services related to preventing,
investigating, and treating child abuse. Ex. 9 shows the assessment amounts, children
served, and costs for providing these services by county.

For the Youth Alternative Placement Assessment, auditors indicated in the report that
assessment revenues are used to assist with the costs for operating the China Spring
Youth Camp and Aurora Pines Girls Facility located in Douglas County, which detain
children who have been adjudicated delinquent by Nevada courts. Ex. 10 shows the
assessment amounts and youths committed by county.

Regarding Youth Parole Bureau Assessment we found that assessment revenues are
used to cover the costs for providing supervision and case management services to
delinquent youth committed to the Division of Child and Family Services youth
correctional services. Ex. 10 shows the assessment amounts and average number of
youths served by county.

Ms. Goetze stated auditors found better communication with counties is needed
regarding the use of assessment revenues and services provided. Auditors surveyed



Legislative Commission’s Audit Subcommittee
October 6, 2014
Page 10 of 28

10 counties regarding concerns they may have relating to these assessments, and
several counties did not feel they had enough information to answer our questions.
Counties stated that they pay their annual assessments, but receive very little or no
correspondence to show how their money is being used and services being provided to
their counties. Two final recommendations for improving communication with counties
were made.

Ms. Goetze concluded her presentation stating the end of the report contains a copy of
Assembly Bill 255, county assessment statutes, assessments paid by each county
during fiscal years 2012 to 2014, a summary of the county survey, our audit
methodology, and the Department’s response. The Department accepted all six
recommendations. She opened for questions from the Committee.

Chair Carlton stated to Mr. Townsend that she wanted to make sure the sponsors of this
bill receive notice that this report was delivered and if they want a copy, it may be
requested.

Senator Parks stated the lack of underlying records, estimates not being retained, or
certain documents being no longer available is throughout the entire report. He asked if
this was due to a lack of staffing.

Ms. Goetze replied that the answer depends on which assessment you are speaking of,
since there are five assessments from two separate Divisions. A majority of the
responses from both Divisions are that individuals who prepared the actual assessment
are no longer employed by each Division. Due to employee turnover, they no longer
had the documents to support their calculations.

Senator Parks stated this is because someone had done estimates earlier on or years
before and someone just followed through with those.

Ms. Goetze replied the assessment referred to is Community Health Services’ and it
had contracts established 14 years ago, but did not have the documents to determine
the cost stated on the contracts.

Chair Carlton stated it was probably the counties wishful thinking that when these
assessments changed it would not be permanent. As it turns out, we are still doing it.
She hoped that in the future there would be a more proactive setting and trueing up
mechanism with overpayments, underpayments, and recalculations. Looks like this bill
is going to stay around. In the future, this needs to be done better. Considering the
circumstances, the auditors did a good job putting this together. The bill was drafted
because the counties did not understand what they were getting for their dollars. Better
communication on how the money is being spent in the appropriate areas will give
people a level of comfort moving forward.

Senator Denis asked how long the Division anticipates it will take to put these policies
into place.

Amber Howell, Administrator, Division of Child and Family Services stated that there is
an action plan started and it should take no longer than 60 days to implement. The



Legislative Commission’s Audit Subcommittee
October 6, 2014
Page 11 of 28

Division has some policy and procedure cleanup to do and some supervisory oversight
so we do not anticipate implementation to take very long. This is good to make those
changes so it will not happen again.

Mary Wherry, Deputy Administrator, Division of Public and Behavioral Health, stated
that the Division has already started working on the policies and procedures for both
Consumer Health Protection and the Community Health Nursing Program. It anticipates
completion within 60 days. Regarding Senator Parks’ question, normally records are
sent to Archives and the record retention policy is 6 years for the State.

Chair Carlton opened for a motion.

ASSEMBLYMAN SPRINKLE MOVED TO ACCEPT THE REPORT ON
THE DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES, USE OF
CERTAIN ASSESSMENTS PAID BY COUNTIES. THE MOTION WAS
SECONDED BY SENATOR KIECKHEFER AND CARRIED
UNANIMOUSLY.

c. Department of Employment, Training and Rehabilitation, Rehabilitation
Division
Shawn Heusser, Deputy Legislative Auditor, stated the Division’s mission is to bring

Nevadans together to promote barrier-free communities in which individuals with
disabilities have equal access to opportunities for quality work and self-sufficiency.

Ex. 1 provides an explanation of the Division’s three bureaus and other office functions.
Ex. 2 and 3 provide a breakdown of revenues and expenditures by budget account.

During fiscal year 2013, the Division had about $40 million in revenues and
expenditures, with nearly $21 million attributed to Services to the Blind and Vocational
Rehabilitation, which were the focus areas of the audit. About 80% of vocational
rehabilitation services are funded by the Federal Government with the remaining 20%
required as a match by the State. Auditors outlined in the report the criteria used for
determining applicant eligibility for vocational rehabilitation services. The report also
explains a participant's Individual Plan of Employment (IPE) is an agreement, which
documents the anticipated employment outcome and specifies the services to be
provided by the Division.

The objectives of the audit were to ensure service payments were properly approved,
paid, monitored, and in accordance with the IPE and to ensure IPEs were approved in
accordance with Division policies and procedures.

Mr. Heusser stated the auditors found the Rehabilitation Division does not ensure
payments for vocational rehabilitation services are properly approved, paid, monitored,
and in accordance with IPEs. Further, auditors found the Division does not ensure IPEs
are approved in accordance with policies and procedures. Finally, auditors found the
Division lacks adequate controls as certain staff are responsible for performing all of the
functions for participant rehabilitation with little required oversight.



Legislative Commission’s Audit Subcommittee
October 6, 2014
Page 12 of 28

Mr. Heusser stated the Division needs to strengthen its controls and establish clearer
guidelines regarding the provision of services not directly attributable to correcting
primary disabilities for which participants are deemed eligible. Ex. 6 shows the Division
incurred over $1.7 million in dental expenditures for fiscal years 2009-2013. Three
offices were responsible for 62% of all participants receiving dental services and 62%,
or $1.1 million in dental expenditures as shown in Ex. 7 and 8. These offices averaged
$271 in dental services per participant (not just dental participants). The remaining
offices averaged only $49 per participant for dental services during the same time
period. Had the 3 offices averaged the same as all other offices, dental expenditures
would have been $907,000 less during this time period.

While participants receiving dental services typically have a primary disability other than
dental used for determining eligibility, in several instances the dental services were the
only or vast majority of services rendered. EX. 9 illustrates this as 23 cases listed a
disability other than dental, yet nearly 95% of all case expenditures were for dental
services.

Mr. Heusser continued that in September 2013 the Division notified the three dental
service providers in Ely that dental problems alone would no longer qualify a participant
for rehabilitative services. However, without specific policies and procedures for
determining when dental services will be provided, the Division is at risk that disabilities
used for determining eligibility will not be addressed.

Mr. Heusser stated that the report discusses the importance of better monitoring of
rehabilitation counselor duties and direct payments. Ex. 10 provides a breakdown of
the vocational rehabilitation expenditures between July 2011 and March 2013. Auditor
review found that if the Division reduced the counselor approval threshold from $6,000
to $2,000 the total number of transactions requiring review by a supervisor would
increase by about 70 per year. In addition, had this threshold been in place during our
audit period, the supervisor over the Ely office would have been required to review 74
dental transactions over a five year time period; however, under the current threshold of
$6,000 only one dental transaction required additional review. The report notes
examples of controls that can be implemented to address concerns regarding the
volume of transactions.

Mr. Heusser continued with direct payments to vendors or participants were not always
accurate or properly documented. Direct payments are typically for tuition,
transportation, housing, supplies, and relocation expenses. Of the nearly $17,000 in
direct payments we tested, over $11,000 was inadequately documented.

Mr. Heusser stated the Division does not have an adequate process in place to ensure
IPEs are properly approved. Authorized amounts for IPEs were exceeded without being
updated and approved by the proper Division authority. As shown on page 20, seven
recommendations were made to improve oversight of vocational rehabilitation services.

Mr. Heusser continued on page 21 with the Division lacks controls over transportation
activities to prevent or detect misuse, abuse, or fraud. Auditors noted that the Division



Legislative Commission’s Audit Subcommittee
October 6, 2014
Page 13 of 28

needs to strengthen its controls over the purchase, receipt, distribution, and monitoring
of fuel cards and direct fuel purchases.

Ex. 11 shows the Division provided nearly $270,000 in fuel purchases between July
2011 and March 2013. Fuel purchases are intended to assist participants with activities
related to vocational rehabilitation services or eligibility assessments.

Mr. Heusser explained that fuel cards were not accounted for or safeguarded. For
example, the Division could not account for which participants received 40 (35%) of 114
fuel cards included in the auditors sample. Due to the weaknesses noted in the control
system and a lack of policies and procedures over fuel cards, the Division cannot
account for all fuel cards purchased and has limited to no assurance that fuel cards
were actually distributed to participants.

Mr. Heusser stated Division staff are not enforcing mileage log submission
requirements. Out of 84 fuel assistance transactions, 78 (93%) did not include mileage
logs. Without mileage logs, the Division does not know if participants used fuel
purchases for their intended purpose. Similar issues for the Division’s distribution and
monitoring of bus passes are included in the report. Five recommendations were made
to improve the controls and oversight of the Division’s transportation assistance.

Mr. Heusser concluded his presentation stating the report contains the audit
methodology as Appendix A. The Division’s response is included at Appendix B and
the Division accepted all 12 recommendations. He opened for questions regarding the
report.

Senator Kieckhefer stated it seems as though there is a lack of accountability and lack
of controls within these programs.

Mr. Heusser replied yes, we did have definite concerns with the controls that were in
place. Primarily with the fact that the rehabilitation counselors while highly qualified,
have sole control in approving the IPEs at the beginning of the process and approve the
vast majority of expenditures.

Senator Kieckhefer stated so there is really only one person making all the decisions.
Mr. Heusser replied that is correct.

Senator Kieckhefer stated he understands the Division is looking for a way to get
services to clients; however, this is why there needs to be layers of separation and
approval. He asked if there is a staffing issue in the Division.

Mr. Heusser replied no, that proper staffing is in place. As pointed out in the report, if
transactions were reviewed by supervisors then there would be a second pair of eyes
looking at transactions making sure that expenditures were appropriate and in line with
Divisions policy.

Senator Parks stated he can understand the transportation assistance program;
however, an example of the dental services provided was requested. In a 5-year period
there are 136 participants receiving dental services, he assumed those are individuals



Legislative Commission’s Audit Subcommittee
October 6, 2014
Page 14 of 28

and not a total number of visits. He asked what scenario a person would take to
become eligible and receive dental services.

Mr. Heusser replied people who were seeking employment or employed at a customer
related job, their appearance could be problematic for them to maintain or get the job
because of bad dental hygiene. The Division claimed that sickness follows with these
dental related problems. This was documented as to the reason why people were
receiving these services.

Senator Denis asked does that mean there was a greater incidence of people needing
dental services in Ely versus everywhere else. Does Ely have a reason for more dental
problems than elsewhere?

Mr. Heusser responded that testing was expanded regarding dental services in Ely.
Division management explained to auditors that these services were spread by word of
mouth throughout the community.

Senator Denis asked if the auditors found an inconsistency, if people were denied in
other areas thus creating a double standard, and was policy different from place to
place.

Mr. Heusser stated auditor testing did not include doing a review looking at specific
denials at other offices; therefore, he did not have that answer.

Assemblyman Sprinkle asked when you presented this lopsided finding to the Division
what was there explanation. You stated something about word of mouth as to the
reason why. Did they have any additional reasons?

Mr. Heusser stated yes, the basic answer was it is a small town and you can receive
that care.

Chair Carlton asked how many dentists are in Ely.

Mr. Heusser responded three that were providers. He did not recall how many more.
Shelley Hendren, Administrator, Rehabilitation Division, introduced herself.

Janice John, Deputy Administrator, Rehabilitation Division, introduced herself.

Ms. John stated that Ely is a very small town with three dentists available for services
and one dentist in Utah. The cost for services in rural towns is sometimes more costly
than in urban areas. The joke of word-of-mouth is what happened. In a small town a lot
of times, people need these services and when you find an agency that is able to assist,
people share that information. Services were provided more broadly than maybe in
other areas. No person has been denied with a disability that has been assessed and
approved by the dental consultant. All applicants including those in Ely are approved by
a dental consultant for the cost involved.

Chair Carlton thanked Ms. John for her answer and stated it is easy to reach a $2,000
dental threshold. She was happy to see the recommendations were accepted. She
requested to hear more about implementing the review process at the supervisor level.



Legislative Commission’s Audit Subcommittee
October 6, 2014
Page 15 of 28

Is the $2,000 dental limit proper, will a policy with that amount be instituted, and how will
the discussion go?

Ms. Hendren replied that the Division has already made some changes within the
policies and procedures manual tightening up the qualifications for an individual to
receive dental services. The Division has been in contact with the service providers in
Ely regarding these new constraints. Not to say that any of the services previously
provided were contrary to policy, law, or manual. The Division has tightened up the
disproportional rate in the finding. There are three dental providers for Ely. Elko,
Winnemucca, and St. George have six dental providers including the three in Ely. As
far as the internal controls and having another look at individual expenditures, the
Division would like to proceed with caution by looking at it statistically, ensuring there
are resources, and being prepared to do it. An extra set of eyes and approvals would
be best practice and the Division is considering review of its data and resources now.

Chair Carlton stated she would like to see the Division move away from the $6,000
dental cost range. However, she is unsure if the $2,000 range is a correct range either.
The Division needs to start evaluating and looking at the ranges with an extra set of
eyes because the dollars that do not get spent in one location can possibly be spent in
another location to help others. Because when we look at this list the numbers are
glaring when Ely is over $377,000, the southern district is $117,000, and Carson City is
only $44,000. It seems that there is a large pie of money and she wants to make sure
that people in other areas are getting the same level of service. Everyone should be
treated equally and have service. If everyone in Ely needed the service that is great,
but surely Carson, North Las Vegas, and Winnemucca need services also. Let’s try and
balance this a little more.

Ms. Hendren stated that the Division agrees with her comments and wants to serve all
Nevadans that need their services.

Senator Parks stated that 80% of the funds that are distributed come from a federal
source. A federal audit of these programs might disallow some of the funding and put
the State on the hook for reimbursement. Is there any knowledge of that?

Ms. Hendren responded the Division is audited by our federal oversight agency, which
is the Rehabilitation Services Administration (RSA). The last audit was in 2011 and
there were no findings pertaining to dental expenditures.

Senator Denis stated how long do your think it will take to implement all of the
recommendations.

Ms. Hendren replied that several changes have been implemented for a large majority
of the 12 findings already. There are three findings remaining that are requiring a little
more time to research. Most of the changes have already been implemented and we
are already seeing a change in the disproportional dental amounts.

Senator Denis asked on the recommendations remaining how much longer will those
take.



Legislative Commission’s Audit Subcommittee
October 6, 2014
Page 16 of 28

Ms. Hendren replied that the Legislative Counsel Bureau gives the Division a certain
amount of time to create the action plan. The Division will work to complete the
recommendations within the time limits required, but the goal is to have those
responses done within the next month.

Chair Carlton stated that the first page of the report highlights is the recommendation
status. Members of the committee are always welcome to follow up with individual
agencies to see how they are doing. If the agency wants to reach out to anyone, it is
welcome to follow up on any other questions. We are going into a legislative session,
which allows us to go a little more in depth with some of these things.

Chair Carlton called for a motion.

SENATOR KIECKHEFER MOVED TO ACCEPT THE REPORT ON THE
DEPARTMENT OF EMPLOYMENT, TRAINING AND REHABILITATION,
REHABILITATION DIVISION. THE MOTION WAS SECONDED BY
ASSEMBLYMAN SPRINKLE AND CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY.

Chair Carlton called for additional public comment. There was none.

ltem 4 — Presentation of Review of Governmental and Private Facilities for
Children, October 2014 (NRS 218G.575)

Mr. Townsend provided a brief history of the review. Pursuant to statute, the Audit
Division did its first review of facilities based on Legislation passed in 2007. Based on
that review in 2009, legislators created a bill to make this a permanent responsibility of
the Division. The need for the reviews arose from instances that occurred at a state
juvenile detention facility in about 2001. These incidents resulted in a federal
investigation and a highly critical report.

Discussing the need for legislation in 2009, Assemblywoman Sheila Leslie who was the
bill sponsor stated, “I do not want any other legislator ever to have to read a report like
that about one of our state institutions without having any warning signs there might be
problems.” This is what started the reviews to be conducted on an ongoing basis.

Our role is to provide information to assist the legislators in their oversight
responsibilities and we are trying to provide some early warnings so not to be put in that
position again. Although the problems here today are not as severe as the ones in the
past, there are notable problems. In the report, you will see specific issues and
responses from the facilities on the corrective action that is taking place. Mr. Townsend
introduced Sandra McGuirk, Deputy Legislative Auditor, and Jane Bailey, Audit
Supervisor, who have been doing these reviews since their inception, to present the
report.

Ms. Bailey began the presentation with the introduction. This report includes the results
of reviews of 4 children’s facilities, unannounced site visits to 2 children’s facilities, and
a survey of 63 children’s facilities. In accordance NRS 218G, the statute requires
reviews of both governmental and private facilities for children. Auditors have identified
21 governmental and 42 private facilities in Nevada. Ex. 1 shows the number of



Legislative Commission’s Audit Subcommittee
October 6, 2014
Page 17 of 28

different types of facilities, their maximum capacity, average population, and staffing
levels as of June 30, 2014.

Ms. Bailey reported that an additional 105 youths were placed in out-of-state facilities by
local governments or the State as of June 30, 2014. These youths were placed in 25
different facilities in 13 different states across the United States. Ex. 2 shows the
number of youths placed in out-of-state facilities by the different placing agencies for the
past 3 years.

Nevada statutes require children’s facilities to forward to the Legislative Auditor copies
of complaints filed by children in their custody or on behalf of those children. In the year
ending June 30, 2014, 833 complaints were received from 29 facilities in Nevada. No
complaints were reported during the year for 32 facilities and 2 facilities did not provide
complaint information. A facility may report no complaints because of the type of facility
or age of the youths served. For example, younger youths in a residential setting are
more likely to discuss complaints rather than write a formal complaint.

Ms. Bailey concluded her portion of the presentation with the audit scope, purpose and
methodology. The reviews include an examination of policies, procedures, processes,
and complaints. Related issues were discussed and observed during the facility visits.
She introduced Sandra McGuirk to present the conclusions and observations made
during the reviews.

Senator Kieckhefer asked for the reason why there was a significant drop in out-of-state
placements by Clark County in 2012 through 2013.

Sandra McGuirk replied Clark County has represented that it is doing a better job as far
as identifying what the youths' issues are. They are better able to determine which
youths have mental health issues and which have a combination of issues. In addition,
they are doing a better job, according to county officials, in surrounding the kids with
services in their area instead of making a decision to send them out-of-state if they
failed some placements in the state.

Senator Kieckhefer stated better service and effort will keep kids located here rather
than placing them out of state. This had nothing to do with the reopening of Red Rock.
This was a focused effort.

Ms. McGuirk stated that is correct.

Ms. McGuirk continued with the presentation. She stated based on the procedures
performed the policies, procedures, and processes in place at three of the four facilities
reviewed provide reasonable assurance that the facilities adequately protect the health,
safety, and welfare of the youths at the facilities, and they respect the civil and other
rights of the youths in their care. During the two unannounced visits conducted, nothing
was noted to cause us to question the health, safety, welfare, or protection of the rights
of the children in the facilities.

Ms. McGuirk stated it was concluded the policies, procedures, and processes in place
at Rite of Passage-Red Rock Academy (Academy) did not provide reasonable



Legislative Commission’s Audit Subcommittee
October 6, 2014
Page 18 of 28

assurance that it adequately protects the health, safety, and welfare, and respects the
civil and other rights of the youths in its care. The Academy is owned by the State and
is located in Las Vegas on the campus of the former Summit View Youth Correctional
Center. The Academy is operated through a contract between the Department of Health
and Human Services, Division of Child and Family Services, and Rite of Passage, a
private, not-for-profit organization.

Ms. McGuirk stated the Academy’s policies and procedures need improvement, and
management needs to take additional steps to ensure staff complies with all policies
and procedures. To illustrate some of the improvements needed by the Academy, she
discussed some of the details from the report.

The Academy’s policies do not require an independent review of medication files and
records, and the documentation of any reviews completed. An independent review is a
method to minimize and address errors. The review found 12 files for the 15 youths
who received medication contained errors. Errors included medication administered
twice on the same day and documentation indicating a youth was administered double
the amount of the prescribed dosage for 8 days.

The staff-to-youth ratios at the Academy did not comply with federal standards or its
contract with Department of Child and Family Services. Standards and the contract
require a ratio of one staff to eight youths during awake hours. Ratios observed during
awake hours included unsupervised youths, 1 staff to 11 youths, and 2 staff to 24
youths. In addition, we reviewed the Academy’s documentation for 2 additional months
and found 98 instances where ratios exceeded 1 staff to 8 youths during awake hours,
including 1 staff to 18 youths.

The Academy’s lack of control over tools included its failure to inventory tools routinely,
which could result in missing tools remaining missing for an extended period of time,
allowing either misuse or theft. Contraband type items observed included sharp objects
or objects that could be used as weapons, such as pipes, screws, and a broken piece of
Plexiglas.

Ms. McGuirk stated all 20 personnel files reviewed contained evidence the Academy
requested background investigations from the criminal history repository using incorrect
statutes. Specifically, background investigations were requested using NRS 179A or
NRS 449, which are both more lenient than the statute the Academy should have used,
NRS 62B.

The Academy’s corrective room restrictions policies were unclear and were not
consistent with statutes. The term corrective room restriction is defined as confinement
of a youth to his or her room as a disciplinary or protective action. The Academy’s,
policies were unclear on the classification and uses of corrective room restrictions,
which resulted in poor reporting of youths placed on corrective room restrictions. In
addition, reports were not traceable to supporting documentation.



Legislative Commission’s Audit Subcommittee
October 6, 2014
Page 19 of 28

Ms. McGuirk stated all four facilities reviewed needed to develop or update policies and
procedures. The types of policies and procedures that were missing, unclear, or
outdated included establishing identity kits for each youth served for use during an
emergency; implementing the Prison Rape Elimination Act requirements; specifying the
timeframe in which a treatment plan must be developed; and clarifying the types of
actions that constitute corrective room restriction.

All four facilities reviewed needed to strengthen their medication administration
processes and procedures. It was found that some youth’s files were missing key
documentation, such as physicians’ orders. Some youths’ medication administration
records contained errors or blank spaces, such as the documentation of an incorrect
dosage of medication or documentation of medication administered to a youth on a day
that did not exist. At one facility, youths’ files showed some youths did not receive their
medication for up to 22 days after it was prescribed.

Ms. McGuirk stated there is a need for all four facilities’ to improve their background
investigation processes and policies. Policies at two of the four facilities did not include
an accurate list of the convictions which would preclude a person from working at the
facilities. In addition, two facilities could improve their background investigation policies
and procedures by including a requirement for all new employees to be subject to a
search of the Statewide Central Registry for the Collection of Information Concerning
the Abuse or Neglect of a Child.

Ms. McGuirk concluded her presentation explaining the report provides more detail on
issues noted at each facility, as well as each facility’s response. For example, Appendix
D on pages 55 through 57 provides some background, population, and staffing
information on 63 Nevada facilities. She opened for questions.

Assemblyman Sprinkle stated he recalled at the last meeting the same findings over
and over again kept popping up. He asked Ms. McGuirk if she is keeping track of this
and is there any recommendations for the legislators she would have rather than just
talking to individual facilities to improve the bigger picture. For example, background
checks and medication procedures keep popping up. Is there an example of a proper
procedure that can be implemented in all facilities or is it so independent to each facility
that this would not work?

Ms. McGuirk replied yes, we do keep track of all the items that keep coming up. Itis
important to note that our reviews focus on the weak areas. This may be why you see
all these issues coming up time and time again. We focus on the weak areas because
we would like to see improvement in those areas. Due to the nature of the reviews and
audits, we identify areas of improvement rather than focusing on the positive things.
However, when a facility does a good job, we do give credit to that particular facility and
have reported that in the past. There are statutes that each of these facilities have to
follow. She was not sure if the information was trickling down from the management at
these facilities to staff, but auditors do look at this closely.



Legislative Commission’s Audit Subcommittee
October 6, 2014
Page 20 of 28

Improvements are being found, however they are small. When selecting facilities to
review, consideration is given to the risk associated with a facility. For example, how
many issues there were during the last review. There is a whole range of issues looked
at and tracked. The areas of weaknesses are the ones we consistently hit.

Chair Carlton stated in the interest of full disclosure, she did not support this facility from
the beginning. She had concerns and this report gives her even more concerns,
especially when she reads about the lack of control of the tools and then the kids use
the tools to escape. That just shows you how smart they are. The report was not a
disaster but the fact that we had three youths able to escape gives me pause. She
remembered the speaker saying during a couple of meetings that she had concerns
with this facility, its location, and our constituents that are near it. Going through this
report and seeing all the staffing issues, it just piles on top of itself and she realizes they
are new and working towards being successful, however she is very concerned. All
these pages in the review on one facility are overwhelming. The discrepancy between
Red Rock’s outlook on staff background checks and compliance with that is a big
concern and getting the Department of Public Safety and Attorney General’s Office
involved is important. We have a youth center with a corrections component attached to
it and folks are talking crosswise on this. Is there something we need to do to straighten
this out in next legislation session? She asked where the miscommunication is so the
appropriate background investigations can be done at this facility.

Ms. Bailey responded the confusion lies in that Rite of Passage operates more than one
type of facility in this state. At some of their facilities, background checks are conducted
under NRS 449, NRS 179A, or the Adam Walsh Act. However, for correctional
facilities, background checks should be conducted under NRS 62B, pursuant to an
informal Attorney General’s opinion and from the Department of Public Safety staff. The
statute should be used that applies to a specific facility. This is a correctional facility;
therefore it would fall under NRS 62B.

Chair Carlton stated this is what needs to be clear. This is a correctional facility that is
owned by the state and contracted out. Ultimately, what happens in this facility is our
responsibility. She asked Ms. Bailey if work is being done to resolve this issue.

Ms. Bailey stated this would be better answered by the facility.

Chair Carlton asked the details of the contract, given the amount of time these folks are
going to have to fix these problems, and move forward. She stated there is also the
next legislative session to work on any problems that may exist. If this does not get
better, she asked where the contract sits. People need a chance to improve, but if not,
we need to know our options.

Amber Howell, Administrator, Division of Child and Family Services (DCFS), stated the
contracts have a couple of provisions. One is to start levying $5,000 per day in fines for
failure to comply. The facility has not reached that yet. But we were very close. The
Academy has made significant improvements and we are monitoring it closely. If the
action does not get better, the contract can be terminated according to provisions



Legislative Commission’s Audit Subcommittee
October 6, 2014
Page 21 of 28

contained within the contract. Terminating the contract would be the end result.
Currently there are 50 kids and the facility is at capacity. The Division does not have
any intention of increasing the cap based on these findings and the budget approval.

Chair Carlton asked of the 50 kids that are at the facility are they all in-state kids or a
blend of in-state and out-of-state.

Ms. Howell replied the kids are all in-state. She did not believe they have accepted any
out-of-state kids yet. Mr. Howell can comment on that.

Chair Carlton stated that she would just be worried that if we took in kids from out-of-
state and we currently have these kinds of problems, which opens the door for even
more problems in the future. It is bad enough as it is. The Academy only has 50 kids
right now; that is good. She asked Ms. Howell for details to be sent later. She would
like to understand the components of this issue if we reach that point. We do not want to
fine people; we want it fixed.

Ms. Howell stated she could provide the committee a copy of the contract and echoed
her comments. Nevada needs a facility with this level for our youth offenders. The
Division has done it the other way, without having a secure facility, and we need one
and are invested in getting there.

Steve McBride, Deputy Administrator, Juvenile Services for Child and Family Services,
introduced himself.

Lawrence Howell, Executive Director, Rite of Passage, introduced himself.

Chair Carlton asked if the recommendations could be addressed and, moving forward,
where is the facility going.

Mr. McBride stated the background checks findings has probably been their most
significant challenge. They have gone outside the Division to illicit feedback from the
Department of Public Safety and from the Deputy Attorney General to guide in the
proper direction. Where the confusion does arise is the fact that Rite of Passage does
operate more than two different types of programs in the state of Nevada. In addition to
the state correctional program, they have an agreement for conducting the background
investigations and checks for the Silver State Academy. He referred the details to
Executive Director Lawrence Howell. =~ When guidance was received from the
Department of Public Safety, he felt clear that the information given was that in order for
Rite of Passage to have their employees background checked, they had to go by the
statute that had been cited. Guidance was also sought from our Deputy Attorney
General. With the findings that have been shared today in the response, clearly we
have to revisit this and determine where the missed steps have occurred so we can be
solid moving forward. The conversation has been continuous and will continue from
here on.

Mr. Howell sated this has been a very frustrating process. Rite of Passage (ROP) said
it would do whatever you want it to do, tell it what to do; and how to do it, to the point of
asking for the Attorney General’'s opinion through the Division of Child and Family



Legislative Commission’s Audit Subcommittee
October 6, 2014
Page 22 of 28

Services and got an opinion. Then the Department of Public Safety said it had to be
done another way. Then Legislative Counsel Bureau said another way. ROP said all
along it will review statutes and make sure its staff's background checks match the
requirements. Tell us how to do it and we will do it. This is how we have been. ROP
meets with DCFS personnel every Tuesday morning in person and every Thursday
morning by video conference to discuss policies and procedures, facility plant
improvements and needs, and maintenance issues, etc. Everything in this report is
discussed several times a week. It is a collaborative effort. Is there anything else that
ROP can do as an organization to meet the other three organizations’ different
opinions? The last opinion from Department of Public Safety that said basically your
agency is receiving the same information; you comply. Tell ROP anything else it needs
to do. ROP does not have any staff that would be precluded as result of NRS 62B.

Chair Carlton stated that she now realizes the Academy is a corrections institution and
there are different levels of background checks, so we should be able to address that.
First of all, we want to make sure the kids are safe, second, we want to make sure the
employees are safe. When reading in the report about the staffing level, the tools issue,
and medication issue, these all added up can be hazardous for the employees.
Ultimately, they are not employees of the State but we still are responsible for this
Agency. She asked how many employees are on staff.

Mr. Howell responded there are 60 that work at the Academy. Everyone meets
gualifications per the position. There was some clarification on who counts in the ratio,
and so we sought out the opinion of the American Correctional Association (ACA) and
are currently going through their accreditation process. Through their guidance, the
Academy was able to count a few more staff. This audit pointed out a lot of stuff that
has either been corrected, is in the middle of being corrected, and 90% is complete. It
is a much better program than before the audit was done; that is the result of being a
startup. ROP is putting everything we have into making this the best program in
Nevada.

Chair Carlton stated that her only concern is there are 50 kids there and a staff of 60,
the Academy may still be on the low side. The auditors will be back out. As the
Academy moves forward, in its corrective action plan, 60 adults to 50 kids sounds great,
but when you start breaking it down into the different shifts that sounds low. Ultimately,
it is about the treatment of the kids and safety of the employees. These numbers give
her a little bit of pause. Not sure how much the Corrections Association can help you
with this, because we have to be very careful with that according to the Prison Rape
Elimination Act. More work needs to be done there and that is one of the places she
will be focused on watching. Because you can fix the toilets, fix the showers, and
change the food but you cannot fix the kids or hurt employees. The ultimate goal is
making sure everyone is safe.

Assemblyman Sprinkle stated that the facility has been working very hard prior to the
audit to correct these findings, however there is something he did not understand. Ms.
Howell made a comment earlier that it almost got to the point where fines were going to



Legislative Commission’s Audit Subcommittee
October 6, 2014
Page 23 of 28

have to be imposed to have these corrective actions take place. Not totally familiar with
the contract, he assumed there is a step process there that is probably one of the later
steps. Corrections are not being accomplished. He asked if these things are being
done, or if there is some misunderstanding or miscommunication that prevented the
corrective actions from taking place the first time. Is this going to be something we are
going to have a problem with in the future? The conversations prior to the opening were
contentious with a lot of concerns from the state from at least three of us sitting at this
table right now. He wanted to make sure that that the organization is fully ready to work
with the state when something like this comes up.

Mr. Howell responded we are throwing everything we have at this project to the point of
moving staff from other states to this state. ROP never was notified it was near a fine.
Part of this is the newness of the project. The Academy has policies that have been
revised eight times in the last six months in efforts to improve. ROP is working hard.
Each week ROP finds something not thought of and rewrites again. The current
operations manual has over 120 policies in it and most of them have been rewritten
seven times since December 4, 2013. This is a start-up, a constant evolution. By no
means are these excuses. Nevada will be proud. This will be the best correctional
program, secure treatment program for juveniles, because if a more in depth audit was
done, ROP would have exceeded expectations.

There is a monitor on site 6 days a week, 8 hours a day who meets with our staff
constantly. In addition to the monitor and the meetings on Tuesdays and Thursdays,
the Academy is going through the ACA accreditation process. There are 100’s of
standards that have to be approved to be accredited. The Academy will be accredited
next summer. Things are going very well with the ACA Accreditation. He stated he
speaks with their specialist weekly and consults with the state. Outside consultants
have been hired that have been federal monitors. ROP hired a consultant for the
Academy that was the superintendent of the largest correctional facility in Colorado in
the past, now retired. ROP has a steering committee made up of a member of the
legislature and members of local and rural communities and have met with them twice.
We are saying anyone who can help, bring it on, as this is a tough project. Some
people call these kids Nevada’'s most unwanted which is not a term we like, but it is a
tough group. It takes a team effort.

Assemblyman Sprinkle stated he truly does appreciate that, as an organization starts up
these problems are going to arise. He just wanted to make sure that he understands.
He gets the Chair’s concerns and the concerns of the state. Ultimately, those children
are our responsibility. He is not saying there will not be issues that arise. He just wants
to make sure there is a very good relationship between you and the state, so when
these things happen there is not a problem trying to fix the problems as they arise. This
is what he is looking for as we go into the next Legislative Session and we continue to
get updates. He wants to make sure that relationship exists.

Mr. Howell replied that he completely understands.



Legislative Commission’s Audit Subcommittee
October 6, 2014
Page 24 of 28

Senator Kieckhefer stated unlike Chair Carlton he was a supporter of trusting the
management of this facility to a vendor as we were preparing to reopen it last session
and reading this report makes him question he was right; he hates feeling that way. He
is very hopeful that this relationship does move forward when we get into 2015. We do
feel comfortable moving forward. He commented the facility has only been open for 10
months and a lot of the criticism in the audit relates to the policies and procedures. He
asked Ms. Howell what steps are taken to review their policy manuals as a state prior to
their opening. Did we not know what we were looking for when we reviewed those the
first time? If they have to be edited 7 or 8 times in 10 months it makes me worried we
really were not prepared for day one.

Ms. Howell responded that Mr. McBride added to the procedures where she missed
steps. Everything happened very quickly, the Division believed there was a good set of
policies to start on day one. Then as you open, there are some growing pains. She
believes this is a balance between growing pains and safety and security. Mr. McBride
can speak about where the policies were at that time and what has happened since.
The policies are being revised and he has more detail.

Mr. McBride stated the policies were received very close to the time we had planned for
the transition of youth into the program. Due to the volume of policies and the amount
of review, we worked with some contractors for that specific project to assess whether
these were adequate for our needs. ROP found that it needs to put a lot more revision
into many of them. Some were for similar programs but not program specific to the
Summit View Site. With the process of going through ACA accreditation, they required
things that ROP would not have known had they not gone through the process. In April,
ROP started a weekly policy review team that consists of members from DCFS, Rite of
Passage, and Mr. Howell. All sit down for 2 hours and go through policies for revisions,
edits, and approval. Some need to be revised several times. When we talk about 8
revisions, it is not always huge pieces of policies, but sometimes it is. Whenever ROP
receives new or additional information that is worthy of consideration, we sit down and
talk about it again as a group. He wished this was started in early months. That is a
lesson learned on where we are today. Moving forward and taking the lessons learned
he believes there are some excellent policies moving forward, the process will continue
and processes at the Academy will continue to get better.

Chair stated that this has been covered.

Ms. McGuirk stated that she believes it is important to note that a lot of this is policy
driven; however, there are significant issues that are beyond policies and procedures.
Not only does everyone need to be on board regarding policies, the staff also plays a
huge part in running the facility. She believes it is very important that they get educated
on what is expected regarding the safety and security of the kids, the staff and any
visitors that go there.

Chair stated it is all about the safety, she called for a motion.



Legislative Commission’s Audit Subcommittee
October 6, 2014
Page 25 of 28

ASSEMBLYMAN SPRINKLE MOVED TO ACCEPT THE REVIEW OF
GOVERNMENTAL AND PRIVATE FACILITIES FOR CHILDREN,
OCTOBER 2014. THE MOTION WAS SECONDED BY SENATOR
KIECKHEFER AND CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY.

Item 5 — Update on Plan for Corrective Action (218G.250)
a. Department of Tourism and Cultural Affairs, Division of Tourism

Mr. Townsend stated at our last meeting in April 2014 an audit report was issued on the
Department of Tourism and Cultural Affairs, Division of Tourism. The subcommittee
decided to review the 60-day plan for corrective action. The plan of corrective action
has been submitted by the Division. He introduced Todd Peterson, Deputy Legislative
Auditor, to present the letter.

Mr. Peterson stated the audit contained 10 audit recommendations and per statute the
Division submitted its 60-day plan for corrective action on July 23, 2014, and a revised
corrective action plan was filed August 27, 2014. The plans of corrective action have
been reviewed and for the most part, we agree with the direction taken by the agency.
However, there are a few questions regarding three recommendations.

During the audit, it was identified that Tourism’s public relations and marketing contract
lacks specific measurable deliverables for some items and did not tie payments to the
acceptance of those deliverables. Specifically the contract did not include actual
deliverable requirements for its website or mobile application. The contract’'s terms
included vague language regarding the deliverables and did not give requirements and
terms for acceptance of the deliverables.

Regarding recommendation six in the audit, Tourism rejected this recommendation in its
response to the audit report. However, in the April 28, 2014, Audit Subcommittee
meeting it indicated it would work on the recommendation. According to Tourism’s
corrective action plans, it will work with the Attorney General’'s Office to develop
contracts. Although working with the Attorney General’s office will be valuable, Tourism
will need to develop policies and procedure to help it identify and develop specifications
and timelines for inclusion in future contracts.

This past Friday some policies and procedures were received from the Division related
to contracting. We have reviewed them and the agency appears to be making an effort
to comply with this recommendation. However, we do have a question:

Does the Agency plan to develop written policies and procedures that will ensure
future contracts include specific deliverable requirements and when possible tie
payments to the deliverables?

Claudia Vecchio, Director, Department of Tourism and Cultural Affairs, replied yes the
Division is moving forward with all updated contracts. The Division is working with the
Attorney General’s Office and with each of the vendors to ensure it has appropriate
deliverables for the contracts tied to the payment of the contract. The Department has
just worked through a contract with its cooperative marketing vendor and tied



Legislative Commission’s Audit Subcommittee
October 6, 2014
Page 26 of 28

deliverables to that contract. Soon the Division will be developing a new contract with
an integrative marketing agency and will tie deliverables to that contract.

Ms. Vecchio further stated that she just wants to be sure in the case of marketing, the
Division is provided with maximum flexibility to be able to change and revise the
deliverables based on what is most salient and needed in the marketing environment.
The Division is always on top of the social and traditional media, so the deliverables are
not so specific that there is no flexibility provided. But the Division can do a better job of
including deliverables such as dates that specific items need to be provided to us
throughout the year. The Division will work in accordance with policy to make sure that
happens.

Mr. Peterson stated regarding recommendation 9 in the report, on ensuring
requirements for the timely submission and review of invoices are included in contracts
and agency policies and procedures, the agency’s corrective action plan addressed one
component of the recommendation, procedures for the timely processing of received
invoices. But as reported in the report, invoices were not always submitted timely by
one of Tourism’s vendors. Therefore, the second question:

Does the agency plan to develop written policies and procedures to ensure future
contracts require the timely submission of contractor invoices?

Ms. Vecchio replied yes, the invoice requirement for the contracts vary from contract to
contract. Some of the vendors submit invoices quarterly and others submit on a
monthly basis, which changes the uniform timeliness of those invoices. The Division is
working to ensure that those invoices are provided in the time that is outlined in the
contract, but also that the invoices are paid in the timelines required by state statute. A
new processing method is in effect, which has been incorporated for this very reason,
which requires a number of different approvals, reviews, and detailed date sequencing.
Sometimes, the Division is tripped up a little bit by having to go back to the vendor with
guestions if it disagrees with something in the invoice. The Division does note if there is
a diversion from the 30-days, it is not the reason for the delay.

Assemblyman Sprinkle asked if payments are being made without invoices first
received. Unless an invoice is received the repercussion would be to not make a
payment.

Ms. Vecchio replied we would not make a payment without receiving an invoice. She
introduced David Peterson, Finance and Operations Manager, and stated he has shown
her contract laws and other ways for monitoring the receipt of invoices. Unless an
invoice is received and carefully reviewed, and meets all deliverables, it is not paid.

Mr. Todd Peterson asked that the agency continue to work with staff regarding its
handling of cash receipts at the Nevada Magazine before finalizing the policies and
procedures in this area. They have developed some policies and procedures. There
are a few concerns but auditors will continue to work with the Division.

Ms. Vecchio stated thank you. When this process started it was a challenge for
marketers and people who are working entirely in a creative environment, but the



Legislative Commission’s Audit Subcommittee
October 6, 2014
Page 27 of 28

Division has been given a chance to get organizational balance. The Division looks
forward to its six-month report time to show how it can balance organizational and
operational needs with world-class marketing and its goal is to continue to do both
better than any other agency on this planet.

Chair Carlton stated she was glad that no action needs to be taken.

Item 6. — Follow-up on Six-month report from a prior meeting (NRS
2018G.270)

a. Department of Administration, Division of Enterprise Information
Technology Services

Mr. Townsend stated we have just gone through the first step of the follow-up process,
the 60-day plan and the second step is the six-month report. The Department of
Administration through its Division of Internal Audits provides a six-month report. We
did not have any at this meeting but it is a common element of other meetings.
Sometimes those six-month reports have recommendations that are still not
implemented and requires an agency to return to a future meeting and sometimes a
couple of future meetings. This report of the Department of Administration, Division of
Enterprise Information Technology Services was issued in February 2012. Since that
time there has been a legislative session and some assistance was provided to the
agency. We have a letter to close out the process. Doug Peterson, Information
Systems Audit Supervisor, will be making the presentation.

Mr. Peterson stated there were 15 recommendations in the audit of February 2012. In
October 2012, the Department of Administration’s 6-month report indicated that 11
recommendations were fully implemented and 4 were partially implemented. In
December 2012, those four recommendations were still partially implemented. By
November 2013 through some work they had done, the auditors concluded that two of
the remaining recommendations were fully implemented and 2 still partially. At the audit
subcommittee meeting in January 2014, the Division testified that both
recommendations would be done by June of 2014.

The recommendations had to do with updating the State’s primary computing facilities
contingency plan and to develop a plan to test the State’s primary computing facilities
information technology emergency plans. The Division has made some progress on
both of those recommendations.

In September auditors met with the Division officials to determine the status of these
two partially implemented recommendations and through discussions and document
review it has been determined that those two recommendations have been fully
implemented therefore we have no questions for the agency.

Chair Carlton asked if the agency had any statements.

Chris Epson, Chief Information Security Officer, stated he agrees with the findings, the
Division is on its way. This is a process as we develop new systems. There are always



Legislative Commission’s Audit Subcommittee
October 6, 2014
Page 28 of 28

new requirements and often, competing requirements based upon the federal
government’s and other initiatives taken on by the State. He is pleased that the Division
is at a point where it has completed the audit process. However, the process of disaster
recovery and all the other findings is an ongoing challenge and we are committed to
continue that process going forward.

Mr. Peterson stated these recommendations deal with securing data, hardware, and
software, which are critical steps. We can go along with our head in the sand, say
nothing has happened yet and be content or we can prepare for the future, which is the
intent of these two recommendations. These are accepted standards out in the industry
for securing hardware and software and providing for the future.

Item 7 — Public Comment
Chair Carlton called for public comment. There was none.
Chair Carlton adjourned the meeting at 3:17 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Deborah Anderson, Audit Secretary

Assemblywoman Maggie Carlton
Chair of the Audit Subcommittee
of the Legislative Commission

Paul V. Townsend, Legislative Auditor
and Secretary to the Audit Subcommittee
of the Legislative Commission



LEGISLATIVE AUDITOR’S ANALYSIS
OF SIX MONTH REPORT



STATE OF NEVADA LEGISLATIVE COMMISSION (775) 684-6800
MARILYN K. KIRKPATRICK, Assemblywoman, Chatrmun

LE G | S LAT IVE C O U N S E L B U R E A U Rick Combs. Directer. Secretary
LEGISLATIVE BUILDING
401 S. CARSON STREET

CARSON CITY, NEVADA 89701-4747
[T RS S AR A N

INTERIM FINANCE COMMITTEE (775) 684-6821
DEBBIE SMITH, Senator, Chetirnumn
Mark Krnpotic, Fiscal Analyst
Cindy Jones, Fiscul Analyst

RICK COMBS, Dirccior
{775) 644-6800

BRENDA J. ERDOES, Legislative Counse!  (T75) 6B4-6830
PAUL V. TOWNSEND. Legislative Auditor (775) 684.6815
DONALD ©O. WILLIAMS. Rescarch Directer (775) 684-6825

Members of the Audit Subcommittee
of the Legislative Commission

Legislative Building

Carson City, Nevada 89701

In January 2014, we issued an audit report on the Department of Business and Industry,
Nevada Transportation Authority. The Authority filed its plan for corrective action in April
2014. NRS 218G.270 provides that the Department of Administration shall issue a report within
6 months afier the plan of corrective action is due outlining the implementation status of the
audit recommendations.

Enclosed is the six-month report prepared by the Department of Administration on the
status of the seven recommendations contained in the report. Based on our review of the
Department’s six-month report, all seven recommendations have been fully implemented.
Therefore, we have no questions for agency officials.

Respectfully Submitted,

F7 7 o
d:a.,.-c._-{_____..---""ﬁ/.

Paul V. Townsend, CPA
Legislative Auditor

PVT:da

cc: Mike Willden, Chief of Staff, Office of the Governor
Steve Weinberger, CPA, Administrator, Division of Internal Audits
Julia Teska, Director, Department of Administration
Andrew MacKay, Chairman, Nevada Transportation Authority

INSPO Bev 10 i e =



SIX-MONTH REPORT



Brian Sandoval Julia Teska
Governor” Director
Janet Murphy
Deputy State Budget Director
STATE OF NEVADA LU
Deputy Director
DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION
209 E. Musser Street, Room 200 | Carson City, NV 89701-4298
Phone: (775) 684-0222 ] Fax: (775) 684-0260
MEMORANDUM
To: Paul Townsend, Legislative Auditor

Legislative Counsel Bureau

From: Julia Teska, Director
Department of Administration

Date: October 3, 2014

Subject: Legislative Audit of the Nevada Transportation Authority

On January 7, 2014, your office released an audit report on the Department of Business and
Industry, Nevada Transportation Authority (division). The division subsequently filed a
corrective action plan on Aprii 2, 2014. NRS 218G.270 requires the Director of the
Department of Administration to report to the Legislative Auditor on measures taken by the
division to comply with audit findings.

There were seven recommendations contained in the report. The extent of the division's
compliance with the audit recommendations is as follows:

Recommendation 1

Ensure all carriers are selected for an operational inspection at least once every 5 years.
Status — Fully Implemented

Agency Actions — The division ensures all carriers are selected for an operational inspection
at least once every 5 years. The division tracks the carriers’ last inspection dates by fiscal
year in order to schedule 5 year operational inspections. We reviewed the division's list of
new carriers receiving inspections and the list indicating the last inspection of each carrier;
we noted that all carriers, with the exception of one that is reportedly out of business but stifl
on the division’s records, had been inspected within the last 5 years.



Paul Townsend, Legislative Auditor
"October 3, 2014
Page 2

Recommendation 2

Update inspection procedures to reflect current practices and include future revisions made
to the selection process.

Status — Fully Implemented

Agency Actions - The division updated inspection procedures to reflect current practices,
which includes provisions for future revisions made to the selection process. The Chief
Inspector is responsible for developing the annual inspection schedule on or about July 1%
each year. We reviewed updates to inspection policies and procedures and discussed the
current inspection practices with staff. Additionally, we reviewed the inspection schedule,
including new carriers, aging carriers, citation follow-ups, and random inspections in
accordance with policies. The Deputy Commissioner is responsible for future updates to
policies and procedures.

Recommendation 3

Require a follow-up inspection on carriers issued a citation during the prior inspection.
Status — Fully Implemented

Agency Actions — The division requires a follow-up inspection on carriers issued a citation
during the prior inspection. The division uses a spreadsheet to track carriers issued citations
and uses the spreadsheet to schedule follow-up inspections in the next year. We reviewed
policies and procedures for updated follow-up inspection procedures and noted that policies
now provide for citation follow-up inspections. We reconciled FY14 safety violation citations
from operational inspections to completed inspections and to the inspection schedule for
FY15. All carriers receiving a safety violation in FY14 were either re-inspected in FY14 or
scheduled for a follow-up inspection in FY15.

Recommendation 4
Revise performance measures lo address processing timeliness for key applications.
Status — Fully Implemented

Agency Actions — The division revised performance measures to address processing
timeliness for key applications. The division defines key applications as the initial applications
from carriers going into business for the first time. We reviewed policies and procedures for
revisions and observed that the new goal is to complete 80 percent of new applications within
nine months. We also reviewed the FY14 performance measures and noted 77 percent were
reported completed within that time period.



Paul Townsend, Legislative Auditor
“October 3, 2014
Page 3

Recommendation 5
Revise performance measures [o idenlify carriers with equity issues.
Status — Fully Implemented

Agency Actions — The division revised performance measures to identify carriers with equity
issues. Staff review all the carriers’ annual reports annually. We reviewed policies and
procedures for revisions and noted performance measures are to complete a 100 percent
review of carriers’ annual reporis to ensure 20 percent equity is maintained. Additionally,
carriers with less than 20 percent equity are to be tracked for further follow-up. We noted the
performance measures reported 100 percent of the 125 annual reports submitted were
reviewed by staff within FY14.

Recommendation 6
Modify performance goals to more accurately reflect performance.
Status — Fully Implemented

Agency Actions — The division modified performance goals to more accurately reflect
performance. The audit report identifies two areas of concern; resolving consumer complaints
and answering public information requests. We reviewed past and current policies and
procedures for modifications. We observed six of ten performance measures were maodified.
For example, consumer complaint resolutions were reduced from 6 months to 60 days and
answering public information requests was reduced from 10 to 5 days. We reviewed the
FY14 performance measures and noted 99.5 percent of consumer complaints and 100
percent of public information requests were completed within stated time periods.

Recommendation 7

Revise policies and procedures to clearly identify what information should be used to
calculate performance measures.

Status — Fully Implemented

Agency Actions — The division has revised policies and procedures to clearly identify what
information should be used to calculate performance measures. For example, the division
created a procedure for each of the ten performance indicators that identify the source data,
the relevant time period or data range to be measured, and the outcome. We reviewed the
guidance for calculating ten performance indicators. We noted the source data and
calculation procedures were clearly identified.



Paul Townsend, Legislative Auditor
‘October 3, 2014
Page 4

The degree of ongoing compliance with these recommendations is the responsibility of the
agency.

Teska, Director
partment of Administration

cc: Mike Willden, Chief of Staff, Office of the Governor
Andrew J. MacKay, Chairman, Nevada Transportation Authority
Marilyn Skibinski, Deputy Commissioner, Nevada Transportation Authority
Steve Weinberger, Administrator, Division of Internal Audits



AUDIT HIGHLIGHT



Audit
Highlights

Highlights of performance audit on the Nevada
Transportation Authority issued on Januvary 7,
2014. Legislative Auditor report # LA14-07.

Background

The Nevada Transportation Authority (NTA)
administers and enforces stale laws pertaining to
passenger transportation, household goods
movers, and tow cars. Passenger transportation
regulated by the NTA primarily includes
limousines, taxicabs outside of Clark County,
charter buses, and airport shuttle services. NTA
was established in 1997. Prior to this date, the
agency was part of the former Public Service
Commission. NTA’s mission is to administer
economic regulation of fully regulated common
carriers of passenger and houschold goods and
protect the safety of consumers in intrastate
transportation of passenpers, household goods,
and tow cars.

NTA has offices located in Las Vegas and Reno.
In fiseal year 2012 expenditures were about $2.9
million. NTA has 24 authorized positions,
including 3 commissioners appointed by the
Governor to 4-year terms. These commissioncrs
serve as administrative hearings officers. The
Governor designates one commissioner to serve
as the chair or executive officer,

Purpose of Audit

The purpose of this andit was to: {1) evaluate
the processes for sclecting and conducting
operational inspections, and (2) evaluate
performance measures, including the reliability
of reported results. Our audit focused on the
processes used for selecting operational
inspections during fiscal years 2008 — 2012, and
included a review of inspections completed from
January 1, 2010 through June 30, 2012, The
audit alse focused on performance measures and
reported results for fiscal years 2010 — 2012,

Audit Recommendations

This audit report contains three
recommendations to strengthen the process of
selecting carriers for inspection, and four
recommendations to improve the reliability and
cilectiveness of performance measures,

The Nevada Transportation Authority accepted
the seven recommendations.

Recommendation Status

The Authority’s 60-day plan for corrective
action is due on April 3, 2014, In addition, the
six-month report on the status of audit
recommendations is due on October 3, 2014.

Nevada Transportation Authority

Department of Business and Industry

Summary

The Nevada Transportation Authority {NTA) can improve its process to select carriers for
operational inspections. From our review of inspection reports, we identified 18 carriers that
had not been inspected during the past 5 fiscal years, as required. In addition, NTA’s selection
procedures should be updated to better address staif responsibilities. Furthermore, carriers with
a history of safety violations were not always selected for a follow-up inspection, while other
carriers without deficiencics were inspected several years in a row.

The NTA can take steps lo improve the effectiveness and reliability of its performance
measures. The goals for some measures do not sccurately reflect performance. For example,
one measure addresses completing 80% of industry applications within 6 months. However, we
found some applications on average could be processed within a few weeks while others
required 8 to 12 months or more to process. In addition, policies and procedures for
performance measures do not always clearly define what should be measured,

Key Findings

NTA’s selection procedures do not ensure carriers are inspected periodically. For example,
procedures require that cach carrier receive an operational inspection at least once every 5 years.
However, as of fiscal year 2012, we identified 18 of 315 carriers that were not inspected during
fiscal ycars 2008 to 2012, or 5 years. (page 5)

NTA should revise its procedures addressing sclecting carriers for inspection. While procedures
outline several factors for stalf to consider when seleeting a carrier for inspection, we found
procedures do not clearly identify all staff involved in the selection process, address the
expected timeframe to develop a list of carricrs for inspection, or define the reasons a carricr
may be sclected for an inspection. {page 6)

Although a process is in place to correct violations, NTA did not always conduct follow-up
inspections of carriers afier issuing a citation for safety violations. A follow-up inspection
would verify if the carrier remains in compliance. This inspection could involve reviewing all
aspects of compliance such as driver qualification and vehicle maintenance files, insurance,
tarifis, and checking vehicles. Or, the inspection could focus on specific prior violations. NTA
issued citations to 15 carriers during fiscal year 2012 for safety violations identified during an
operational inspection. However, NTA did not select 10 of the 15 carriers for a follow-up
inspection. Meanwhile carriers with no safety violations were selected 2 or 3 years in a row for
an inspection, Of the five carriers subsequently sclected for an inspection, three were ordered
by the Commissioners as part of the administrative hearing process, and the other two were
randomly sclected by staff, (page 7)

Several NTA performance measures as currently written and reported do not provide
management with the best information. For example, one measure addresses completing 80%
of industry applications within 6 months. However, we found some applications on average
could be processed within a few weeks while others required 8 to 12 months or more to process.
As a result, the measure as currently reported does not provide specific information on the
timeliness of key applications. In addition, another measure designed to identify potential
financial problems does not include a review ol all carriers. (page 11)

The goals for some measures understate performance. For example, one measure addresses the
percentage of consumer complaints resolved within 6 months. NTA’s goal for this measure is
to resolve 90% of all complaints within 6 months. However, we found NTA resolves more than
90% of all complaints in 60 days or less. (page 14)

Although NTA has developed policics and procedures governing performance measurcs, some
revisions are needed. Current procedures do not provide sufficient guidance to ensure
performance measure results are consistently reported. As a result, incorrect information was
reported in some cases. In addition, procedures need to be revised to define application
complction limeframes, safety violations, and financial audits. (page 15)

Audit Division
Legislative Counsel Bureau

For mare information about this or other Legislative Audilor
Teports go to: hilp fwww lep slae nv.usaudit (775) 684-6815




LEGISLATIVE AUDITOR’S ANALYSIS
OF SIX MONTH REPORT



STATE OF NEVADA LEGISLATIVE COMMISSION (775) 684-6800
MARILYN K. KIRKPATRICK, Assembivwoman, Chairman

LEG I S LATIV E C O U N S EL B U REA U Rick Combs, Director, Secretury
LEGISLATIVE BUILDING
401 S. CARSCN STREET

CARSON CITY, NEVADA B9701-4747
il fellilaklplol i

INTERIM FINANCE COMMITTEE (775) 684-6821
DEBBIE SMITH, Scrator, Chairman
Mark Krmpotic, Fiscal Amalyst
Cindy Jones, Fiscal Analyst

i BRENDA J. ERDOES, Legishuive Counsel (775) 684-6830

PAUL V. TOWNSEND, Legislative Auditor  (175) 684-6815
DONALD O. WILLIAMS, Research Director {773) 684-6825

RICK COMBS, Director
(775) 683-6800

November 21, 2014

Members of the Audit Subcommittee
of the Legislative Commission

Legislative Building

Carson City, Nevada 89701-4747

In January 2014, we issued an audit report on the Nevada State Library and Archives, Mail
Services (Division). The audit report contained two recommendations to improve oversight and
control activities related billing state agencies for mail service. The Division filed its plan for
corrective action in April 2014, NRS 218G.270 provides that the Director of the Department of
Administration shall issue a report within 6 months outlining the status of the audit
recommendations.

Enclosed is the six-month report prepared by the Department of Administration on the status of
the two recommendations contained in the report. As of October 3, 2014, both recommendations
were partially implemented. The two recommendations shown below were noted as partially
implemented because the Division was not documenting the review of billings and manually
input data used in the billing process.

Recommendation
Number

Work with the Administrative Services Division lo improve controls over
1 billings by implementing management review, monitoring, and
reconciliation processes.

Enhance written policies and procedures to include periodic reviews of data
manually input from logs and data,

1~

The Department of Administration, in its six month report noted the Division has
modified and developed policies and procedures related to its billing process and that it
represents it is performing the reviews noted in the recommendations. However, the Department
of Administration could not see whether reviews were actually occurring because the Division is
not documenting those reviews. Many of the billing and input errors noted in our audit resulted
from a lack of adequate review of various processes, making this process a vital component of
the recommendations.

(RSP Rew, T-13) iy e =i



Members of the Audit Subcommittee
of the Legislative Commission

November 21, 2014

Page 2

Question

1. Has the Division implemented a process where reviews of the billing function and
manually input data are documented to ensure they are performed timely and in
accordance with stated policies and procedures?

Respectfully Sybmitted,
8 M
e

Paul V. Townsend, CPA
Legislative Auditor

PVT:da
Enclosure
cc: Mike Willden, Chief of Staff, Office of the Governor
Julia Teska, Director, Department of Administration
Steve Weinberger, Administrator, Division of Internal Audits
Daphne O. DeLeon, Administrator, Division of Nevada State Library and Archives



SIX-MONTH REPORT



Brian Sandoval Julia Teska
Governor Direcior
Janet Murphy
Deputy State Budget Director
STATE OF NEVADA LI
Deputy Director
DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION
209 E. Musser Street, Room 200 | Carson City, NV 89701-4298
Phone: (775) 684-0222 | Fax: (775) 684-0260
MEMORANDUM
To: Paul Townsend, Legislative Auditor

Legislative Counsel Bureau

From: Julia Teska, Director
Department of Administration

Date: October 3, 2014
Subject: Legislative Audit of the Nevada State Library and Archives, Mail Services

On January 7, 2014, your office released an audit report on the Depariment of Administration,
Nevada State Library and Archives Division’'s Mail Services (division). The division
subsequently filed a corrective action plan on April 9, 2014. NRS 218G.270 requires the
Director of the Department of Administration to report to the Legislative Auditor on measures
taken by the division to comply with audit findings.

There were two recommendations contained in the report. The extent of the division’s
compliance with the audit recommendations is as follows:

Recommendation 1

Work with Administrative Services Division to improve controls over billings by implementing
management review, monitoring, and reconciliation processes.

Status — Partially Implemented

Agency Comments — The division has worked with Administrative Services Division (ASD) to
improve controls over billings. The division reports it performs periodic reviews of manually
input data. The division also reports reconciling totals between logs and billing software
before sending billing claims to ASD daily. ASD reports implementing an internal database in
2014 to process the division’s billing files. The internal database replaces the spreadsheet
noted in the audit containing formula and other errors. ASD also reports it audits the bill claim
process.



Paul Townsend, Legislative Auditor
October 3, 2014
Page 2

Auditor's Comments — We reviewed division and ASD billing policies, division data entry
process, and ASD controls. We tested and reconciled six division billing claims prepared by
ASD for March, May, and June 2014. The billing claims were prepared using the new internal
database. We did not find any errors in the resulting bills. The division represents it
completes periodic reviews, but does not document those reviews. Accordingly, we were
unable to substantiate the division is implementing the new policies and procedures.

Recommendation 2

Enhance written policies and procedures to include periodic reviews of data manually input
from logs and reports.

Status — Partially Implemented

Agency Comments - The division enhanced written policies and procedures to include
periodic reviews of data manually input from logs and reports. We reviewed policies from the
division and ASD, and noted changes in both documents adding in review processes.
Division staff report completing required reviews as workloads allow.

Auditor's Comments — The division represents it completes periodic reviews, but does not
document those reviews. Accordingly, we were unable to substantiate the division is
implementing the new policies and procedures.

The degree of ongoing compliance with these recommendations is the responsibility of the
agency.

g 1o
a Teska, Director
epartment of Administration

cc: Mike Willden, Chief of Staff, Office of the Governor
Daphne O. DeLeon, Administrator, Division of Nevada State Library and Archives
Steve Weinberger, Administrator, Division of Internal Audits



AUDIT HIGHLIGHT



Audit
Highlights

Highlights of performance audit report on the
Nevada State Library and Archives, Mail
Services issued on January 7, 2014, Legislative
Auditor report # LA14-10.

Background

The Nevada State Library and Archives (NSLA)
is a division of the Department of
Administration and is responsible for providing
full access to a range of information services
that enhance the quality of life for all and center
on creating an educated and enlightened
citizenry, while supporting the interests of the
State.

Support for NSLA’s activities are recorded in
six budget accounts. NSLA’s funding sources
for fiscal year 2013, consist mainly of service
fees, peneral fund appropriations, and receipts
from other governments. Of the almost $13
million in total funding sources, nearly $6.4
million or 51% were derived from mail service
delivery. Further, in fiscal year 2013, NSLA
had expenditures of $12.5 million of which $5
million or 40% related 1o postage and parcel
fees.

Mail scrvice can be grouped into three
categories: interdepartmental mail is collected
and delivered from one state agency to another;
postal mail is delivered by a third party; and
production services include folding, inserting,
and addressing envelopes.

In calendar year 2012, Mail Services processed
aver 14 million pieces of mail and 7 million
picces of production items. An administrative
fee of roughly 18% is applied to all services and
is used to fund operations,

Purpose of Audit

The purpose of our audit was to determine if the
process of billing state agencies for mail service
was accurale and complete. Billing aetivities
werce reviewed for calendar year 2012,

Audit Recommendations

This audit report contains two recommendations
to improve oversight and control activities
related to billing state agencies for mail service.

The NSLA accepted the two recommendations,

Recommendation Status

The NSLA's 60-day plan for corrective action is
due on April 3, 2014. In addition, the six-month
report on the status of audit recommendations is
due on October 3, 2014.

For more information about itus or other Legislative Auditor

Teponts go to- hiip e leg sate nv usgudy (775) 884-6815

Nevada State
Library and Archives
Mail Services

Department of Administration

Summary

Generally, Mail Services® billing process is reasonably accurate and complete; however,
minor control weaknesses at Mail Services and the Administrative Services Division (ASD)
of the Department of Administration could allow errors and omissions (o occur and not be
identified. Our review of billing documents revealed weaknesses that resulted in instances of
omitted billings, duplicate charges, and improper amounts charged to state agencies for
postage. Errors occurred because the process to compile and bill agencies for postage costs
relies on spreadsheets and manual processes. About $8.200 in over and under billings of
state agencies occurred due mainly to formula and other errors noted on spreadsheets.

Key Findings

Mail Services relies on multiple spreadsheets and manual operations to generate agency
billings. These processes are inherently susceptible to error. Some cells in spreadsheets we
examined had inaccurate or non-existent totals and inconsistent formulas. In addition, some
data entercd manually was inaccurate and resulted in improper totals and amounts billed,
These errors occurred due to the cumbersome process and inadequate review and
reconciliation. (page 7)

During calendar year 2012, Mail Services and ASD sent over 3,100 billings totaling over $6
million for posiage, parcel, and production services. Billings are sent monthly to all user
agencies who accumulale fees in excess of $3. (page 7)

Our review of monthly spreadsheets for all of calendar year 2012 found some agencics were
billed inaccurate amounts or were not billed at all. Examples of errors include:

e Six uscr agencics with fces totaling nearly $4,200 were not billed because
spreadsheet formulas were missing.

e Six agency bills included duplicate charges of about $2,800 for postage and other
fees because spreadsheet formulas were incorrect.

« [n one instance, an agency was overbilled when the spreadsheet cell containing the
number of mail picces was added to the cost of postage. This formula crror
resulted in an overbilling of almost $1,200. (pagce 8)

Additional minor billing errors occurred when data tecorded on logs was manually
transferred into the mail management information system incorrectly. We tested a random
sample of 40 billing claims and found 5 with minor billing crrors. Billing errors included the
transposition of numbers, posting o the wrong budget account, and omilting the number of
pieces processed. (page 9)

Although the errors found were not significant, larger errors could oceur if controls are not
strengthened. Posting to the wrong budget account and omitting the number of mail picces
processed could impact user agencies’ budpet planning and oversight. Revising written
policics and procedures to include a periodic review of data manually input by a person
independent of the process could help to identify crrors. (page 9)

Audit Division
Legislative Counsel Bureau




LEGISLATIVE AUDITOR’S ANALYSIS
OF SIX MONTH REPORT



STATE OF NEVADA LEGISLATIVE COMMISSION (775) 684-6800
MARILYN K. KIRKPATRICK, Assemblyvwoman, Chairman

LEGISLATIVE COU NSEL BU REAU Rick Comhs, Direcior, Secretary

LEGISLATIVE BUILDING
INTERIM FINANCE COMMITTEE (775) 684-6821

401 5. CARSON STREET ‘ DEBBIE SMITH, Senator, Chairman
CARSON CITY, NEVADA 89701-4747 " Mark Krmpotic. Fiscal Analyst

E Y, e Il Cindy Jones, Fiscal Analvst

RICK COMBS., Direcios o L _' o i BRENDA J. ERDOES. Legislative Counsel  (775) 684-6830
(775} 684-6800 N e o PAUL V. TOWNSEND, Legislutive Auditor {775) 684-6815
T VA DONALD O. WILLIAMS, Rescarch Director  (775) 684-6825

November 21, 2014

Members of the Audit Subcommittee
of the Legislative Commission

Legislative Building

Carson City, Nevada 89701

In January 2014, we issued an audit report on the Department of Public Safety, State Fire
Marshal Division. The audit report contained three recommendations to improve the hazardous
materials program and internal controls over revenues. The Division filed its plan for corrective
action in March 2014. NRS 218G.270 provides that the Director of the Department of
Administration shall issue a report within 6 months outlining the status of the audit
recommendations.

Enclosed is the six-month report prepared by the Department of Administration on the
status of the three recommendations contained in the report. As of October 3, 2014, the
Department of Administration indicated that the three recommendations were partially
implemented. In November 2014, we met with the Division and reviewed documentation
showing that two other recommendations related to developing policies and procedures for
identifying hazardous materials facilities, and providing adequate separation of duties over
processing hazardous materials permit payments, were now fully implemented. The remaining
partially implemented recommendation relates to the hazardous materials permit website.

Recommendation
Number

Update the Division’s website to provide more comprehensive information and

2 i . . : .
user-friendly guidance on the hazardous materials permit requirements.

Recommendation Number 2 was to update the Division’s website to provide more
comprehensive information and user-friendly guidance on the hazardous materials permit
requirements. Qur audit found some businesses did not understand the hazardous materials
reporting requirements. Therefore, these businesses reported chemicals when not required, or
did not report all hazardous materials.

The Department of Administration’s six-rmonth report indicated the Division is in the
process of implementing a new permit system which will assist in providing more
comprehensive information and user-friendly guidance on hazardous materials permit
requirements. The Division anticipates full implementation of this recommendation by January
31,2015,

{NSPD Hew 7-00p iy 1E7EE 1'_'-__:‘_ﬁ



Members of the Audit Subcommittee
November 21, 2014
Page 2

Question:

1. Is the Division still on track to update the permit system by January 31, 2015?

Respectfully Submitted, /,/_,_)

I B
M =il
& o VI

Paul V. Townsend, CPA
Legislative Auditor

PVT:dw
cc: Mike Willden, Chief of Staff, Office of the Governor
Julia Teska, Director, Department of Administration
Steve Weinberger, Administrator, Division of Internal Audits
James Wright, Director, Department of Public Safety
Peter Mulvihill, P.E., State Fire Marshal



SIX-MONTH REPORT



Brian Sandoval Julia Teska
Governor Director
Janet Murphy
Deputy Starte Budget Director
Ann Wilkinson
DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION Deputy Director
209 E. Musser Street, Room 200 | Carson City, NV 89701-4298
Phone: (775) 684-0222 | Fax: (775) 684-0260
MEMORANDUM
To: Paul Townsend, Legislative Auditor

Legislative Counsel Bureau

From: Julia Teska, Director
Department of Administration

Date: October 3, 2014

Subject: Legislative Audit of the Department of Public Safety, State Fire Marshal
Division

On January 7, 2014, your office released an audit report on the Department of Public
Safety, State Fire Marshal Division (division). The division subsequently filed a
corrective action plan on March 31, 2014. NRS 218G.270 requires the Director of the
Department of Administration to report to the Legislative Auditor on measures taken by
the division to comply with audit findings.

There were three recommendations contained in the report. The extent of the division's
compliance with the audit recommendations is as follows:

Recommendation 1

Develop policies and procedures for efficiently and effectively identifying and permitting
facilities requiring a hazardous materials permit.

Status — Partially Implemented

Agency Comments — The division revised existing policies and procedures for efficiently
and effectively identifying and permitting facilities requiring a hazardous materials
permit.

Auditor Comments — A list of 2,214 businesses requiring hazardous materials permitting
was provided to the division by the auditors. Based on the listings, the division
determined that only 249 businesses were under their jurisdiction and the rest were in
counties with populations over 100,000 (outside their jurisdiction). The division provided
the names and addresses of those businesses outside their jurisdiction to the



Paul Townsend, Legislative Auditor
October 3, 2014
Page 2

appropriate counties for follow-up and permitting purposes. However, the division is yet
to follow-up on the 249 businesses within their jurisdiction.

Recommendation 2

Update the Division's website to provide more comprehensive information and user-
friendly guidance on the hazardous materials permit requirements.

Status — Partially Implemented

Agency Actions — The division is currently in the process of implementing a new permit
database software which will assist in providing more comprehensive information and
user-friendly guidance on hazardous materials permit requirements. The division
anticipates full implementation of this recommendation with an update of the permit
software system by January 31, 2015.

Recommendation 3

Enhance policies and procedures to ensure duties over processing hazardous materials
permit payments are segregated, including reconciling payments received to amounts
deposited.

Status — Partially Implemented

Agency Comments — The division enhanced policies and procedures to ensure duties
over processing hazardous materials permit payments are segregated, including
reconciling payments received to amounts deposited.

Auditor Comments — Our examination of the cash receipt process revealed the
employee that records payments in the hazardous materials database also makes the
bank deposit. Additionally, the revised policies and procedures, do not address the
segregation of these two functions.



Paul Townsend, Legislative Auditor
October 3, 2014
Page 3

The degree of ongoing compliance with these recommendations is the responsibility of
the agency.

ia Teska, Director
epartment of Administration

cc: Mike Willden, Chief of Staff, Office of the Governor
James Wright, Director, Department of Public Safety
Peter Mulvihill, P.E., Chief, State Fire Marshal Division
Steve Weinberger, Administrator, Division of Internal Audits



AUDIT HIGHLIGHT



Audit
Highlights

Highlights of performance audit report on the
State Fire Marshal Division issued on January 7,
2014. Lepislative Auditor Report # LA14-09.

Background

The State Fire Marshal Division was created
within the Insurance Division of the Department
of Commerce in 1965 and moved to the
Department of Motor Vehicles and Public
Safety in 1993. The Division's mission is to
protect life, property, and the environment from
fires and hazardous materials in the State of
Nevada. This is accomplished through the
development and application of fire codes and
standards, fire prevention education, fire service
training, fire protection engineering, licensing,
and permitting. In addition, the Division
performs investigative and enforcement services
delivered directly or in coordination with the
public safety community.

In fiscal year 2013, the Division had 21
employees located in its Carson City, Elko, and
Las Vegas offices. The Division’s operating
account had over $3 million in revenues,
including $676,000 in appropriations and over
$1.5 million in fees. Fiscal year 2013
expenditures totaled $2.6 million.

The Division is responsible for permitting and
regulating hazardous materials within the State.
Hazardous material facilitics permitted by the
Division include businesses that store substances
which could threaten the health and safety of the
public. As of June 2013, the Division had 5,170
facilities with hazardous material permits,

Purpose of Audit

The purpose of this audit was to evaluate the
Division’s permitting and licensing processes,
and controls over revenue collections. Our audit
focused on the Division's activities for the 12-
maonth period ending March 31, 2013, and
included permitting activities up to June 2013.

Audit Recommendations
This audit report contains three
recommendations to improve the hazardous
materials program and internal controls over
revenues.

The Division accepted the three
recommendations.

Recommendation Status

The Division’s 60-day plan lor correclive action
is due on April 3, 2014. In addition, the six-
month report on the status of audit
recommendations is due on October 3, 2014,

For merc information about this or other Legistative Auditor

reports go to: by Awww Jep state pvusiaudin (775) 684-6816.

State Fire Marshal Division

Department of Public Safety
Summary

Many businesses that store hazardous materfals have not been identified and permitted in
accordance with program requirements. As a result, the Division has not been able to achieve
cquitablc regulation of the hazardous materials program. With increased efforts by the Division
to identify hazardous material facilitics and enforcement assistance from local povernments, we
estimate the Division could collect an additional $250,000 in annual permit fees. Identifying and
permitting facilitics that store hazardous materials is required by federal and state laws to help
ensure public safety. Similar problems were identified during our audit in 2007; however,
implementation of prior audit recommendations was not sustained. Therefore, the Division
needs to develop cfficicnt and effective procedures to identify and permit businesses storing
hazardous materials, and improve guidance to help businesses understand reporting
requircments,

The Division collected and deposited fees in accordance with state requirements. We tested
about 40% of the Division’s fee receipts and found payments were deposited timely, permit
payments were propetly recorded, and fee adjustments were proper.  Although stafi properly
deposited and recorded the money collected, improvements can be made to the Division's
internal controls regarding separation of duties,

Key Findings

The Division has not identified and permitted many businesses that are highly likely to siore
hazardous materials, resulting in incquilable regulation of the hazardous materials program.
FFrom our review of 16 types of businesses, 1,686 of 3,895 facilities (43%) did not have a
required permit. With increased efforts by the Division to identify hazardous material facilitics
and enforcement assistance from local governments, we estimate the Division could collect an
additional $250,000 in annual permit fees. Collection of permit fees is used to fund programs to
train firefighters and help protect the public. Similar weaknesses were identified during our
audit in 2007; however, procedures developed in response 1o our sudit were not currently in use.
(page 7)

The Division needs (o develop cfficient and cffective methods te help identify facilities storing
hazardous materials. Our audit focused on reviewing types of facilities that were highly likely to
need a hazardous materials permit. We researched the intermnet and obtained information
available from state and local agencics to identify specific facilitics. We also quericd the
Division’s database to determine whether each facility had a permit. During our audit, the State
Fire Marshal was very helpful and open to suggestions for improving the program. The Division
is currently working on improving the permitting process using the state’s business portal.

(page 11)

Many businesses with a hazardous materials permit do not understand what types and quantitics
of hazardous materials should be reported. Some businesses report chemicals when not required,
and other businesses underreport hazardous materials. As a result, hazardous materials
information is not always correct and some facilitics may wasle resources reporting unnccessary
information, Cenfusion regarding reporting requirements stems from three main issues: (1)
Inteenational Fire Code requirements are difficult to understand, (2) guidance by the Division is
not sufTicient, and (3) some of the Division’s information is inaccurate or outdated. (page 13)

The Division has licensed fire protection businesses as required by state law. This includes
businesses which service, install, or sell fire extinguishers, fire alarm sysiems, or fire sprinkler
systems. We tested 40 fire protection businesses identified from internet searches and found al)
40 were licensed by the Division. Furihermore, we called five businesses with expired licenses
and confirmed a license was no longer needed. During fiscal year 2013, the Division collected
over $550,000 in licensing fees. (page 17)

The Division has not adequately separated the duties of stafT processing hazardous malerials
permit payments. The same cmployee records payments in (he hazardous materials database and
makes the bank deposit. In addition, reconciliations are not performed between permit payments
reccived and amounts deposited by someone independent of the receipt and deposit process.
Without adequate scparation of dutics, including periodic reconciliations of permit payments to
deposits, the Division is at risk funds could be misappropriated. Internal controls are important
in this area since the Division processed over $1.4 million in hazardous material payments in
fiscal year 2013. This amount includes approximatcly $900,000 in hazardous material fees
collected for the State Emergency Response Commission. (page 18)

Audit Division
Legislative Counsel Bureau




LEGISLATIVE AUDITOR’S ANALYSIS
OF SIX MONTH REPORT



STATE OF NEVADA LEGISLATIVE COMMISSION (775) 684-6800
MARILYN K. KIRKPATRICK. Assembiywoman. Chairman

L E G I S LAT I V E C O U N S E L B U R E A U Rick Combs, Directar, Secretury

LEGISLATIVE BUILDING
INTERIM FINANCE COMMITTEE (775) 684-6821

401 S. CARSON STREET mm— DEBBLE SMITH, Semator, Chairman
CARSON CITY, NEVADA 89701-4747 e N Mark Krmpotic, Fiscal Analyst
bt iiisioiih Pk 1 Cindy Jones, Fiscal Analyst
RICK COMBS, Direcior LR O BRENDA J. ERDOES. Legisknive Connse!  {T75) 684-6830
(775) 684-6800 Ry PAUL V. TOWNSEND. Legisfative Auditor  (T75) 684-6815

DONALD O. WILLIAMS, Rescarch Director (775} 684-6825

November 21, 2014

Members of the Audit Subcommittee
of the Legislative Commission

Legislative Building

Carson City, Nevada 89701-4747

In January 2014, we issued an audit report on the Commission on Mineral Resources,
Division of Minerals. The Division filed its corrective action plan in April 2014. NRS
218G.270 provides that the Department of Administration shall issue a report within 6 months
after the plan of corrective action is due outlining the implementation status of the audit
recommendations.

Enclosed is the six-month report prepared by the Department of Administration on the
status of the four recommendations contained in the audit report. As of October 3, 2014, the
Department of Administration indicated one recommendation was fully implemented and three
were partially implemented. The three partially implemented recommendations shown below
relate to monitoring oil, gas, and geothermal operations for compliance with regulatory
requirements, and securing abandoned mines.

Recommendation
Number

Develop and implement a risk-based approach to determine the nature,
] extent, and timing of inspections performed on oil, gas, and peothermal
operations.

Document inspections of oil, gas, and geothermal operations to indicate
what requircments were checked, the inspection results, and any corrective
action needed; and communicate this information to well operators.

(2% ]

Establish a follow-up process to ensure that parties notified of their
4 responsibility to secure abandoned mines do so, including referral 1o county
officials so that enfoercement action can be taken when appropriate.

Inspections of Oil, Gas. and Geothermal Operations

Our audit found the Division could enhance the monitoring of oil, gas, and geothermal
operations in the State. Specifically, by performing periodic inspections of operations, it can
obtain greater assurance that these operations are complying with regulatory requirements. The
regulations are intended to ensure safety, protect the environment, and minimize the waste of
natural resources. Recommendation 1 concerning developing a risk-based inspection approach
was deemed partially implemented by the Department of Administration since there was limited
data on the Division’s new risk matrix. Our follow-up found the Division subsequently added
data on the various risk factors developed by the Division on each of the operations needing
inspections. These risk factors were then scored and operations were grouped into high,

(NSFD Rev. 713} (h 15T8E g



Members of the Audit Subcommittee
of the Legislative Commission

November 21, 2014

Page 2

medium, and low risk categories. Depending on the category, operations were to be inspected
every year, every 3 years, or every 5 years. Therefore, we consider this recommendation to be
fully implemented.

Recommendation 2 related to improving the documentation of inspections performed.
The recommendation was deemed partially implemented because a database used to track
inspection results has not been completed. However, we consider this recommendation to be
fully implemented because the Division is documenting inspection results and corrective action
needed, and communicating this information to well operators,

Follow-Up Needed When Parties Fail to Secure Hazards

Our audit found recent efforts by the Division to secure abandoned mines by notifying
responsible parties have been effective. Based on our testing of Division records, responsible
parties secured 642 hazards in the last 3 years after the Division notified them of their
responsibility. However, the Division did not perform sufficient follow-up when parties failed to
adequately respond after being notified. Recommendation 4 related to establishing a follow-up
process in such instances. The Department of Administration considered it partially
implemented because the Division had not yet sent notification letters to county officials for
possible enforcement action. The Division sent these letters on October 24, 2014. Therefore, the
recommendation is fully implemented.

Based on our review of the six-month report and other documents provided, we believe
the Division has met the intent of the recommendations deemed partially implemented by the
Department of Administration. Therefore, we consider all recommendations to be fully
implemented at this time and do not have any questions for Division officials.

Respectfully Submitted, //"7
S 7

Pau! V. Townsend, CPA
Legislative Auditor

PVT:.da

Enclosure

cc: Mike Willden, Chief of Staff, Office of the Governor
Julia Teska, Director, Department of Administration
Steve Weinberger, Administrator, Division of Internal Audits
Richard Perry, Administrator, Division of Minerals



SIX-MONTH REPORT



Brian Sandoval Julia Teska
Governor Director
Janet Murphy
Deputy State Budget Director
STATE OF NEVADA Aon Wilkinson
Deputy Director
DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION
209 E. Musser Street, Room 200 | Carson City, NV 89701-4298
Phone: (775) 684-0222 | Fax: (775) 684-0260
MEMORANDUM
To: Paul Townsend, Legislative Auditor

Legislative Counsel Bureau

From: Julia Teska, Director
Department of Administration

Date: October 3, 2014

Subject: Legislative Audit of the Commission on Mineral Resources, Division of Minerals

On January 7, 2014, your office released an audit report on the Commission on Mineral
Resources, Division of Minerals (division). The division subsequently filed a corrective action
plan on April 2, 2014. NRS 218G.270 requires the Director of the Department of
Administration to report to the Legislative Auditor on measures taken by the division to
comply with audit findings.

There were four recommendations contained in the report. The extent of the division's
compliance with the audit recommendations is as follows:

Recommendation 1

Develop and implement a risk-based approach fo determine the nature, extent, and timing of
inspections performed on oil, gas and geothermal operations.

Status — Partially Implemented

Agency Comments — The division is developing and implementing a risk-based approach to
determine the nature, extent, and timing of inspections performed on oil, gas and geothermal
operations. The division has a risk matrix to score potential risk and inspectors reportedly
consider those risks when scheduling inspections.

Auditor's Comments - The division established a risk matrix to record data from inspections
and scores for evaluating risk. We noted there was limited data on the matrix. There is
insufficient evidence to determine if the recommendation is adequately implemented.



Paul Townsend, Legis!ative Auditor
October 3, 2014
Page 2

Recommendation 2

Document inspections of oil, gas, and geothermal operations to indicate what requirements
were checked, the inspection resulls, and any corrective action needed; and communicate
this information to well operators.

Status — Partially Implemented

Agency Actions — The division documents inspections of oil, gas, and geothermal operations
(well operations) to indicate what requirements were checked, the inspection results, and any
corrective action needed. |t communicates this information to well operators by letter. The
division intends on tracking well operations data with an internal database that it plans to
modify over the winter. The division inspects wells and communicates findings to operators.
We reviewed inspection spreadsheets and letters to operators addressing corrective action
needs. We noted that both contained inspection results. The division believes the
recommendation will be fully implemented by March 2015 after it has modified its internal
database.

Recommendation 3

Obtain credible evidence, in accordance with state regulations, that document geothermal
well blowout prevention tests were performed by operators.

Status — Fuily Implemented

Agency Comments — The division obtains credible evidence, in accordance with state
regulations, that documents geothermal well blowout prevention tests were performed by
operators. The division currently travels to well sites to observe well blowout testing. We
randomly selected three of eighteen, or about 17 percent, of the wells drilled in 2014 and
noted reports made by the owner-operator’'s contracted geologist indicated the presence of
staff on site during drilling and graphical testing results for prevention tests in all the sampled
files.

Recommendation 4
Establish a follow-up process fo ensure that parties notified of their responsibility to secure
abandoned mines do so, including referral to county officials so that enforcement aclion can
be taken when appropriate.
Status — Partially Implemented
Agency Actions — The division is establishing a follow-up process to ensure that parties are

notified of their responsibility to secure abandoned mines. The division reports identifying
1,400 of 18,600 sites, about 7.5 percent that need to be notified. It reports preparing to send



Paul Townsend, Legislative Auditor
October 3, 2014
Page 3

first notifications to operators of the requirement to secure abandoned mines in October
2014. The second notifications will be sent in March 2015, and include referrals to county
officials so that enforcement action can be taken when appropriate. The division also intends
to populate the modified abandoned mine database with updated ownership data. We
reviewed the modified database and verified the division was adding updated data. The
division believes the recommendation will be completed by March 2015.

The degree of ongoing compliance with these recommendations is the responsibility of the
agency.

‘o |
Jilla Teska, Director

D¥partment of Administration

cc: Mike Willden, Chief of Staff, Office of the Governor
Richard Perry, Administrator, Division of Minerals
Steve Weinberger, Administrator, Division of Internal Audits



AUDIT HIGHLIGHT



Highlights

Highlights of performance audit report on the
Division of Mincrals issued on January 7,
2014. Legislative Auditor report # LA14-12.

Background

The Division of Minerals, a part of the
Commission on Mineral Resources, is
responsible for administering programs and
activities to promote, advance, and protect
mining and the development and production of
petroleum and geothermal resources in
Nevada. The Division’s offices are located in
Carson City and Las Vegas. As of June 30,
2013, the Division had 11 full-time employces.
The Division is funded primarily from fees
paid by the mining industry. In fiscal year
2013, mining claim fees collected totaled about
$2.1 million. Fees collected from the oil, gas,
and geothermal industrics amounted to about
$173,000. Division expenditures totaled
approximately $2.5 million in fiscal year 2013.

The Division’s responsibilities include
permitting, inspecting, and monitoring all oil,
gas, and geothermal drilling activities on both
public and private lands in Nevada. In
addition, the Division’s Abandoned Mines
Program was cstablished in 1987, Program
activities include identifying dangerous mines
siles, ranking the sites according to the degree
of danger, and notifying responsible partics of
their obligation to sccure dangerous
conditions. The Division is responsible for
securing abandoned mines where no
responsible party can be found.

Purpose of Audit

The purpose of this audit was to evaluate the
Division’s efforts to: (1) monitor oil, gas, and
geothermal drilling operations for compliance
with regulatory requirements; and (2) secure
abandoned mines by notifying responsible
parties.

This audit focused on the Division’s activities
from July 1, 2010, through June 30, 2013.

Audit Recommendations
This audit report contains three
recommendations to improve monitoring of
oil, gas, and geothermal operations. In
addition, one recommendation was made to
improve cforts to secure abandoned mines by
notifying responsible parties.

The Division accepted the four
recommendations.

Recommendation Status

The Division’s 60-day plan for corrective
action is duc on April 3, 2014, In addition, the
six-month report on the status of audit
recommendations is duc on October 3, 2014.

For more information aboul this or other Legisiative Auditor

reports go 10: hiip Ywwiw leg state.nv us/audit (775) 684-6815

Division of Minerals

Commission on Mineral Resources

Summary

The Division can enhance its moniloring of oil and geothermal drilling operations in the State.
Specifically, by performing periodic inspections of operations, it can obtain greater assurance
that these operations are complying with requirements in reguiations adopted by the Commission
on Mincral Resources. The regulations are intended to ensure safety, protect the environment,
and minimize the waste of natural resources. Furthermore, the Division needs to wilness
geothermal pressure tests to ensure geothermal operators perform the test in accordance with
regulations adopted by the Commission. The tests are intended to ensure well safety equipment
is working efTectively to minimize the risk of a blowout incident.

The Division’s ¢fforts lo secure abandoned mines by notifying responsible parties have been
cffective. In the past 3 years, hundreds of mines have been sccured through the Division
identilying and informing partics of abandoned mines that the parties were responsible for
securing. However, the Division can enhance the results of its cfTorts by following up when
tesponsible parties do not provide evidence that abandoned mincs have been secured. Follow-up
should include notifying counties of responsible parties that have failed to secure the abandoned
mines. Improved follow-up may prevent physical harm to persons or animals from occurring al
hazardous abandoned mines.

Key Findings

The Division has not cstablished an inspection process to help ensure oil and geothermal
operations are meeting regulatory requirements. Although the Division reviews an entity’s
operating plans for compliance with the regulations before approving drilling permiils,
inspections ate not regularly performed. Inspections would provide greater assurance that an
entity is complying with requirements related to the construction, operation, and abandonment of
wells, Management indicated wells are visiled on an exception basis if problems arise, but the
inspections are not sulficiently documented. Near the end of the audit, the Division began taking
steps to establish an inspection process. Currently, there are 430 geothermal-related wells and
111 oil-related wells in Nevada. About 40% (181 of 430) of the geothermal-related wells and
almost all (107 of 111) of the oil-related wells are on federally-managed land., The Bureau of
Land Management {BLM) is responsible for regulating wells on federal lands. However, the
Division also has oversight responsibility since it issues operating permits for wells on federal
lands. (page 6)

The Division did not witness safety tests performed al geothermal well operations. Regulations
adopted by thc Commission require the Division to witness the testing of blowout prevention
cquipment immediately afier it is installed at a well site. We randomly sclected 10 safety tests
and {ound none were witnessed by Division personnel. This problem was noted in the Jast audit
of the Division. (page 8)

Recent efforts by the Division o secure abandoned mines by notifying responsible pariics have
been effective. Based on our testing of Division records, responsible partics sccured 642 hazards
{abandoned mines} in the last 3 years after the Division notified them of their responsibility,
This occurred because the Division rescarched county records 1o determine who was responsible
for securing the abandoned mines it investigated. When the rescarch identified a responsible
party, the Division notificd the party of their responsibility to sccure the dangerous condition,
Parties were notified about the specific hazards on their claims, timeframes for taking action,
documentation that had to be provided upon securing the hazard, and contact information for
assistance. Pursuant to NAC 513.380, dangerous conditions had to be secured within 60 to 180
days depending on the danger rating assigned by the Division. The actual number of mines
securcd may be higher than found through examining Division records. Management indicated
that based on its experience, some responsible partics secure mines, but fail to provide
documentation to the Division. (page 11)

From our testing of Division records, we found the Division did not perform sufficient follow-up
when responsible parties failed to adequately respond upon netification of their responsibility to
secure abandoned mines. From the hazards that remained unsecured afier the Division notified
the responsible partics, we randomly selected 40 hazards and reviewed agency records for
documentation of follow-up cfforts. Qur test found that afier the initial notification, the Division
did not follow up with the responsible party for all 40 hazards. Countics are authorized by stale
law to take enforcement action against responsible parties failing to secure abandoned mines.
(page 12)

Audit Division
Legislative Counsel Bureau




LEGISLATIVE AUDITOR’S ANALYSIS
OF SIX MONTH REPORT



STATE OF NEVADA LEGISLATIVE COMMISSION (775) 684-6800
MARILYN K. KIRKPATRICK. Assemblvwoman, Chairman

L E G ] S LAT l V E C O U N S E L B U R E A U Rick Combs. Direcior, Secrerary

LEGISLATIVE BUILDING
INTERIM FINANCE COMMITTEE (775) 6846821

401 S. CARSON STREET e DEBBIE SMITH, Senator, Chairman
CARSON CITY, NEVADA 89701-4747 S REETINR Mark Krmpotic, Fiscal Analyst
PO S T TP P ! Cindy Jones. Fiscal Analvsi

RICK COMBS, Dircctor e J BRENDA J. ERDOES, Legislative Counsel (7751 683-6830
(775) 684-6800 St PAUL V. TOWNSEND, Legistaine Auditor (T75) 684-6815
A DONALD O. WILLIAMS, Research Dircctor (775) 684-6825

November 21, 2014

Members of the Audit Subcommittee
of the Legislative Commission

Legislative Building

Carson City, Nevada 89701-4747

In January 2014, we issued an audit report on the Department of Public Safety, Division
of Emergency Management. The Division filed its corrective action plan in April 2014. NRS
218G.270 provides that the Department of Administration shall issue a report within 6 months
after the plan of corrective action is due outlining the implementation status of the audit
recommendations.

Enclosed is the six-month report prepared by the Department of Administration on the
status of the eight recommendations contained in the audit report. As of October 3, 2014, the
Department of Administration indicated two recommendations were fully implemented and six
were partially implemented. One partially implemented recommendation relates to enhancing
controls over the Division’s equipment and five recommendations concern improving oversight
of equipment in the custody of subgrantees. The six partially implemented recommendations are
shown below.

Recommendation
Number

Timely dispose of excess equipment and notify State Purchasing when equipment

3 is lost or disposed.

Revise the risk-based approach for scheduling onsite visits to include all active
4 subgrantees for the grant program under review, provide adequate coverage, and
ensure management's review and approval is documenied.

Revise procedures for onsite visits of subgrantees 10 include performing a physical
observation of cquipment, documenting an evaluation of internal controls over

. equipment, obtaining cvidence a physical inventory was performed, and
documenting a report date.

6 Provide greater supervisory oversight of work performed during onsite visits of
subgrantees 1o ensure Division policies and procedures are being followed.

7 Encourage subgrantees 1o develop procedures for tracking high-risk items costing
less than $5,000 that are purchased with federal funds.
Require subgrantees 1o: (a) maintain a document in which it attests 1o performing

8 a physical count of all federally-funded equipment in the last 2 years; (b) notify

the Division when equipment has been transferred to a sub-subgrantee; and (c)
develop procedures for monitoring equipment in the custody of a sub-subgrantec.

NSO Hee 713 ) 15788 =i



Members of the Audit Subcommittee
of the Legislative Commission

November 21, 2014

Page 2

Some Equipment Was Not Properly Disposed

Our audit found the Division did not could submit property disposition reports to the
State Purchasing Division when it transferred equipment to other state agencies. The six-month
report indicates the Division of Emergency Management has strengthened controls over the
timely disposition of equipment. Nevertheless, recommendation 3 is partially implemented
because the Division has excess equipment in its warehouse and is currently working on
disposing it.

Question

1. When does the Division expect to dispose of equipment in its warehouse that is no
longer needed?

Process for Scheduling Onsite Visits of Subgrantees Has Weaknesses

The Division is required to perform onsite visits of subgrantees to help ensure
compliance with all programmatic and financial grant requirements. However, we found the
Division’s methodology for scheduling onsite visits of subgrantees had weaknesses. The six-
month report indicates the Division has made sufficient revisions to their approach for
scheduling onsite visits (recommendation 4), but had not conducted any onsite visits in the
current fiscal year, and therefore deemed the recommendation partially implemented.

Question

2. Has the Division conducted any onsite visits of subgrantees in the current fiscal year
yet? In addition, what has caused the delay in conducting onsite visits?

Testing of Equipment During Onsite Visits Can Be Enhanced

Our audit found the Division’s procedures for testing equipment during onsite visits of
subgrantees could be enhanced. Specifically, the Division did not always evaluate internal
controls over equipment, perform physical observations of equipment, or verify the subgrantees
conducted a physical inventory. In addition, we found a lack of documentation of supervisory
review of work performed during onsite visits. The six-month report indicates the Division has
revised procedures to address these concerns, but deemed recommendations 5 and 6 to be
partially implemented until the Division performed onsite visits. However, since the Division
has revised its procedures to address these concerns, we consider the recommendations to be
fully implemented.



Members of the Audit Subcommittee

of the Legislative Commission
November 21, 2014
Page 3

Stronger Controls Could Help Reduce Risk of Theft or Loss

Although our audit did not find any major problems with subgrantees’ accountability
over equipment purchased with funds received from the Division, we found stronger controls
could reduce the risk of theft or loss. Recommendation 7 related to enhancing controls over
high-risk items costing less than the $5,000 threshold covered by federal regulations. Since the
Division has modified its agreement with subgrantees to address such items, we consider this
recommendation to be fully implemented even though onsite visits have not been conducted yet.
Recommendation 8 also relates to enhancing controls at subgrantees. Although the six-month
report indicates the Division has revised its procedures to address part (a) of the
recommendation, the Division indicates parts (b) and (c) of the recommendation will be
addressed when it conducts onsite visits.

Question

3. Has the Division considered revising its written procedures or agreements with
subgrantees to address all of the areas covered in recommendation 8?

ReSpec_tfg}Ily Submitted,

@w/é % e

Paul V. Towfisend, CPA
Legislative Auditor

PVT:da

Enclosure

cc: Mike Willden, Chief of Staff, Office of the Governor
Julia Teska, Director, Department of Administration
Steve Weinberger, Administrator, Division of Internal Audits
Christopher Smith, Administrator, Division of Emergency Management



SIX-MONTH REPORT



Brian Sandoval Julia Teska
Governor Director
o “‘j‘#’" : Janet Murphy
LA Deputy State Budget Director
STATE OF NEVADA Ann Wilkinson
209 E. Musser Street, Room 200 I Carson City, NV 89701-4298
Phone: (775) 684-0222 | Fax: (775) 684-0260
MEMORANDUM
To: Paul Townsend, Legislative Auditor

Legislative Counsel Bureau

From: Julia Teska, Director
Department of Administration

Date: October 3, 2014

Subject: Legislative Audit of the Department of Public Safety, Division of Emergency
Management

On January 7, 2014, your office released an audit report on the Department of Public
Safety, Division of Emergency Management (division). The division subsequently filed
a corrective action plan on April 4, 2014. NRS 218G.270 requires the Director of the
Department of Administration to report to the Legislative Auditor on measures taken by
the division to comply with audit findings.

There were eight recommendations contained in the report. The extent of the division's
compliance with the audit recommendations is as follows:
Recommendation 1

Perform an annual physical count of equipment and reconcile the count with state
property records.

Status — Fully Implemented

Agency Comments — In a response status report dated August 15, 2014, the division
indicated the physical inventory for fiscal year 2015 was in the process of being
finalized.

Auditor Comments — Our review of the fiscal year 2015 fixed asset inventory report
dated August 18, 2014 revealed the division completed the annual physical count of
equipment and the count was reconciled to the state property records.



Paul Townsend, Legislative Auditor
October 3, 2014
Page 2

Recommendation 2

Ensure all required equipment has a state ID tag aftached and is recorded in stale
properly records.

Status — Fully Implemented
Agency Actions — The division indicated all required equipment has a state 1D tag
attached and is recorded in state properly records. We reviewed 12 equipment

purchases done in fiscal year 2014 and verified the equipment had a state ID tag and
was properly recorded in the state's property records.

Recommendation 3

Timely dispose of excess equipment and notify State Purchasing when equipment is
lost or disposed.

Status — Partially Implemented

Agency Actions — The division indicated they have strengthened controls over the timely
disposition of excess equipment and is notifying State Purchasing when equipment is
lost or disposed. However, the division has equipment in its warehouse that should be
disposed or excessed. The division states they are currently working on disposing this
equipment.

Recommendation 4

Revise the risk-based approach for scheduling onsite visits to include all active
subgrantees for the grant program under review, provide adequate coverage, and
ensure management’s review and approval is documented.

Status — Partially Implemented

Agency Actions — The division revised their risk based approach for scheduling onsite
visits. We reviewed the division’s methodology for scheduling onsite visits and noted
the revisions were adequate. The division is currently in the process of developing a
site visit schedule for fiscal year 2015 to ensure adequate coverage is provided on
subgrantees and management's review and approval is documented on the schedule.
The division anticipates onsite visits to begin in November 2014.



Paul Townsend, Legislative Auditor
October 3, 2014
Page 3

Recommendation 5

Revise procedures for onsite visits of subgrantees to include performing a physical
observation of equipment, documenting an evaluation of intemal controls over
equipment, obtaining evidence a physical inventory was performed, and documenting a
report date.

Status — Partially Implemented

Agency Actions — The division revised procedures for conducting onsite visits as it
relates to property/equipment management. We reviewed the procedures and noted
revisions to include performing a physical observation of equipment, reviewing system
in place to safeguard property and equipment, obtaining evidence a physical inventory
was performed, and documenting a report date. However, due to the division’s limited
resources, since the time of the LCB audit they have not been able to perform onsite
visits of subgrantees. The division anticipates onsite visits to begin in November 2014.

Recommendation 6

Provide greater supervisory oversight of work performed during onsile visits of
subgrantees to ensure Division policies and procedures are being followed.

Status - Partially Implemented

Agency Comments — The division indicated supervisory oversight consists of verbal and
electronic correspondence and that such documentation will be maintained.

Auditor Comments — The division has not performed onsite visits since the conclusion of
this audit. Therefore, we were unable to review subgrantee documentation to determine
if greater supervisory oversight is being provided. The division anticipates onsite visits
to begin in November 2014.

Recommendation 7

Encourage subgrantees to develop procedures for tracking high-risk items coslting less
than $5,000 that are purchased with federal funds.

Status - Partially Implemented
Agency Actions — The division modified the “grant financial and program assurances”

which will require subgrantees to track high-risk items costing less than $5,000 that are
purchased with federal funds. This new requirement will be in effect for the upcoming



Paul Townsend, Legislative Auditor
October 3, 2014
Page 4

federal fiscal year 2014 grants. In addition, the division will require the subgrantees to
submit a high risk inventory plan by November 2014.

Recommendation 8

Require subgrantees to: (a) maintain a document in which it attests to performing a
physical inventory of all federally-funded equipment in the last 2 years; (b) notify the
Division when equipment has been transferred to a sub-subgrantee; and (c) develop
procedures for monitoring equipment in the custody of a sub-subgrantee.

Status — Partially Implemented

Agency Actions — The division revised procedures for conducting onsite visits as it
relates to property/equipment management. We reviewed the procedures and noted
revisions to include obtaining evidence a physical inventory was performed of all
equipment in the last 2 years. However, the procedures did not address notifying the
division when equipment has been transferred to a sub-subgrantee or procedures for
monitoring equipment in the custody of a sub-subgrantee. The division anticipates
onsite visits to begin in November 2014 at which time they will inform the subgrantees
of these requirements.

The degree of ongoing compliance with these recommendations is the responsibility of
the agency.

irector
partment of Administration

cc: Mike Willden, Chief of Staff, Office of the Governor
James Wright, Director, Department of Public Safety
Christopher B. Smith, C.E.M., Chief, Division of Emergency Management
Steve Weinberger, Administrator, Division of Internal Audits



AUDIT HIGHLIGHT



Audit
Highlights

Highlights of performance audit report on the
Division of Emergency Management issued on
January 7, 2014. Legislative Auditor Report #
LAl4-11,

Background

The mission of the Division of Emergency
Management is to coordinate the efforts of the
State and its political subdivisions in reducing
the impact of disasters. The Division’s primary
responsibility is the administration of the
emergency management program for the State,
The Division works with federal, state, local,
and tribal agencics, private entities, and the
general public. It administers and issues federal
homeland security and other grant funding for
equipping, planning, training, and exercises for
first responders such as law enforcement, fire,
and emergency medical services. The Division
monitors grant recipients to ensure compliance
with federal requirements.

In fiscal year 2013, the Division had total
funding of about $23.7 millien. The Division is
funded primarily by federal grants. The funding
consists of about $23.2 million in federal grants
and the remainder in general fund
appropriations. The lederal grants are received
primarily from the U.S. Department of
Homeland Security. For fiscal year 2013, the
Division had 33 legislatively approved
posilions.

Purpose of Audit

The purpose of this audit was to determine if the
Division: (1) properly tracks, safeguards, and
disposes of its equipment, and (2) provides
sufficient oversight of equipment purchased by
its subgrantees with federal funds. Qur audit
focused on the Division’s equipment aciivities
from July 2011 through June 2013,

Audit Recommendations

This audit report contains three
recommendations Lo enhance controls over the
Division’s equipment. In addition, there are five
recommendations to improve oversight of
cquipment in the cuslody of subgrantees.

The Division accepled the eight
rccommendations.

Recommendation Status

The Division’s 60-day plan for corrective action
is due on April 3, 2014. In addition, the six-
moenth report on the status of audit
recommendations is due on October 3, 2014,

for more information about this or other Legislative Auditor

reports go 1o hipfwww Jeg stalenvus/aydit (775) 684-8815

Division of
Emergency Management

Department of Public Safety
Summary

The Division of Emergency Management needs to strengthen controls over equipment in its
custody. We found the Division did not perform an annual inventory or properiy track its
cquipment. As a result, items could not be located and property records were not accurate,
Controls in these areas arc important to help ensure safeguarding of equipment, including many
items with a high susceptibility to thelt or loss, such as laptop computers. State property records
indicate the total acquisition cost of itlems currently held by the Division is $1.5 million.

The Division could improve its oversight of equipment purchased by subgrantecs with federal
funds. We found the Division did not implement a sound methodology for scheduling onsite
visits, or perform sufficient testing of cquipment while onsite. Although our testing of
equipment in the possession of subgrantees found no major problems, certain controls could be
implemented o help ensure equipment is properly safeguarded and readily available when
needed.

Key Findings

The Division did not perform an annual inventory of equipment in its custody as required by
state law. NRS 333.220 requires agencies to perform an annual physical inventory of their
equipment and reconcile the results with the state’s property records. According te the Division,
its most recent inventory was performed in July 2011, which was over 2 years ago. The lack of
an annual physical inventory of its equipment contributed to the Division not being able to locate
7 of 50 (14%) items we tested. The total cost of these seven items was about $15,000. (page 5)

The Division did not always attach state identification (1D} tags to its cquipment. For9 of 42
(21%) items we tested, there was no state 1D tag attached to the equipment. Attaching a state 1D
lag is important beeause it helps facilitate proper tracking of equipment. In addition, the
Division’s property records did not include all items in its custody. For example, audio-video
equipment acquired in June 2012 for about $257,000 for the Emergency Operations Center was
not included in state property records. The newly-acquired cquipment was purchased to replace
components of an existing video wall. To facilitate proper tracking of the equipment acquired in
2012, it needs to be recorded in state property records. (page 6)

The Division’s methodology for scheduling onsite visits of subgrantees has weaknesses.
Specifically, the Division’s risk assessment for scheduling onsite visits did not include all active
subgrantees for the grant program under review. Also, staff did not decument how it determined
whecther the subgrantce was high or low risk. Additionally, the Division did not always perform
onsile visits of high-risk subgrantees, and the number of onsite visits was limited. Without a
sound methodology for scheduling onsite visits, there is less assurance that high-risk subgrantees
are adequately monitored. (page 9)

The Division’s procedures for testing equipment during onsite visits of subgrantees can be
cnhanced. We found the Division did not always evaluate internal controls over equipment,
perform physical observations of cquipment, or verify the subgrantce conducied a physical
inventory. Without an assessment of internal controls and adequate testing of equipment, there
is an increased risk that an intemnal control weakness, missing equipment, or noncompliance with
federal laws will not be detected. (page 11)

Overall, our testing did not find any major problems with subgrantees’ nccountability over
cquipment purchased with federal funds received from the Division. However, stronger controls
could reduce the risk of theft or loss. For example, subgrantecs are only required to track
cquipment that costs $5,000 or more. Thus, commonly purchased equipment such as laptop
computers, high-definition cameras, and night vision goggles costing less than $5,000 are not
required to have an asset tag or be listed in the property records. According to Division records,
the combined 1olal spent on equipment by subgrantees was about $24 million for grants awarded
in lederal fiscal ycars 2008 10 2010. (page 12)

Audit Division
Legislative Counsel Bureao






